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NatWest Markets Plc - India Branch
(Incorporated in Scotland with Limited Liability)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Chief Executive O�cer
NatWest Markets Plc - India Branch

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the 昀nancial statements of NatWest Markets Plc – India Branch (“the Bank”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Pro昀t and Loss Account, the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended and notes to the 昀nancial statements, including a summary of 
signi昀cant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid 昀nancial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, 
the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) from time to time (‘RBI Guidelines’) and 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required for Banking Companies and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of 
the Act read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2023, and its loss 
and its cash 昀ows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) speci昀ed under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 昀nancial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have ful昀lled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence obtained by us is suf昀cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 2 and 2.1 of Schedule 17 and Note 15.17 of Schedule 18 to the 昀nancial 
statements which states that the Bank has 昀led an application with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) 
to close its business and operations with effect from close of business on 31 December 2019 and 
to surrender its Banking licence issued in India. Accordingly, the going concern assumption in the 
preparation of these Financial Statements is not considered appropriate and hence, the 昀nancial 
statements are prepared under liquidation basis of accounting.
Accordingly, assets are stated at the amounts at which they are expected to be realized and liabilities 
are stated at values at which they are expected to be settled.
Our opinion is not modi昀ed in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Bank’s Management Team Committee is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the Pillar 3 Disclosure.
Our opinion on the 昀nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the 昀nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the 昀nancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements
The Bank’s Management is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation and presentation of these 昀nancial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the 昀nancial position, 昀nancial performance, and cash 昀ows of the Bank in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 
speci昀ed under section 133 of the Act, and provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 
1949 and the circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) from time to time 
(‘RBI Guidelines’). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act, Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and RBI Guidelines for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
昀nancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 昀nancial statement that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the 昀nancial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Bank’s Management has prepared the 昀nancial 
statement on net realizable value basis of accounting, as the Bank ceases to be a going concern.
The Management is also responsible for overseeing the Bank’s 昀nancial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 昀nancial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to in昀uence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these 昀nancial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 昀nancial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is suf昀cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Bank has internal 昀nancial 
controls with reference to 昀nancial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast signi昀cant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. As we have concluded that a material uncertainty exists, as the management of the 
Bank has 昀led an application with the RBI to close down its banking business and operation w.e.f. 
from December 31, 2019 and surrender its banking license in India, we have drawn attention 
in our auditor’s report with respect to the fact that the Bank ceases to be a going concern. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 昀nancial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the 昀nancial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and signi昀cant audit 昀ndings, including any signi昀cant de昀ciencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. The Balance Sheet and the Pro昀t and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and Section 133 of the Act 
and relevant rules issued thereunder. 

2. As required by sub-section (3) of section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we report 
that:
a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of 

our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found 
them to be satisfactory;

b. the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers 
of the Bank.

c. Since the key operations of the Bank are automated with the key applications integrated to 
the core banking system, the audit is carried out centrally at Mumbai as all the necessary 
records and data required for the purposes of our audit are available therein.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
c. The Balance Sheet, the Pro昀t and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 

by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid 昀nancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

speci昀ed under Section 133 of the Act,  to the extent they are not inconsistent with the 
guidelines  prescribed by RBI.

e. The requirements of Section 164(2) of the Act are not applicable considering the Bank is a 
branch of NatWest Group Plc, which is incorporated with limited liability in Scotland. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal 昀nancial controls with reference to 昀nancial 
statements of the Bank and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure A”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, the Bank is a banking 
Company as de昀ned under Banking Regulation Act, 1949. Accordingly, the requirements 
prescribed under Section 197 of the Act do not apply. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 昀nancial position in 

its 昀nancial statements – Refer Schedule 12(I) and note 15.9 to schedule 18 to the 
昀nancial statements;  

ii. The Bank did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Bank;

  iv. 1. The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Bank to or in any 
other person(s) / entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
has, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identi昀ed in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Bank (“Ultimate 
Bene昀ciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Bene昀ciaries; 

2. The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the Bank from any person(s) / entity(ies), including 
foreign entities, that the company has directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identi昀ed in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Bene昀ciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bene昀ciaries; and 

3. Based on the audit procedures which we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances and according to the information and 
explanations provided to us by the Management in this regard, nothing has come 
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations made by the 
Management under sub-clause (1) and (2) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Bank has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the 
Bank only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable during the 
year.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 105047W
Sd/-
Prateek Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 139144
UDIN: 23139144BGPPHM2636
Place: Mumbai
Date: June 15, 2023

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NatWest Markets Plc - India Branch
[Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the 
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of NatWest Markets Plc - India Branch 
(“the Bank”) on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
Opinion
We have audited the internal 昀nancial controls with reference to 昀nancial statements of NatWest 
Markets Plc - India Branch (“the Bank”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the 
昀nancial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.
In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 昀nancial controls with 
reference to 昀nancial statements and such internal 昀nancial controls with reference to 昀nancial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with 
reference to 昀nancial statements criteria established by the Bank considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the 
“Guidance Note”).
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Bank’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 昀nancial controls 
based on the internal control with reference to 昀nancial statements criteria established by the 
Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 昀nancial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and ef昀cient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to Bank’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable 昀nancial information, as required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank’s internal 昀nancial controls with reference to 
昀nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 昀nancial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 昀nancial controls with 
reference to 昀nancial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of internal 
昀nancial controls with reference to 昀nancial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal 昀nancial controls with reference to 昀nancial statements included obtaining an understanding 
of internal 昀nancial controls with reference to 昀nancial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 昀nancial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf昀cient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Bank’s internal 昀nancial controls with reference 昀nancial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A Bank’s internal 昀nancial control with reference to 昀nancial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 昀nancial reporting and the preparation 
of 昀nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Bank’s internal 昀nancial control with reference to 昀nancial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly re昀ect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the bank; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 昀nancial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the bank are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the bank’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the 昀nancial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal 昀nancial controls with reference to 昀nancial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal 昀nancial controls with reference to 昀nancial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal 昀nancial control with reference to 昀nancial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 105047W
Sd/-
Prateek Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 139144
UDIN: 23139144BGPPHM2636
Place: Mumbai
Date: June 15, 2023

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
(Rs. in 000’s)

Schedules As at 31 
March 2023

As at 31 
March 2022

CAPITAL & LIABILITIES
CAPITAL 1  28,028,210  28,028,210 
RESERVES & SURPLUS 2  (3,426,227)  (2,605,743)
DEPOSITS 3  -    -   
BORROWINGS 4  18,539,607  17,100,684 
OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 5  5,388,694  5,081,349 
TOTAL  48,530,284  47,604,500 
ASSETS
CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA 6  1,221,981  1,661,268 
BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL 
AND SHORT NOTICE 7  1,304,732  209,623 
INVESTMENTS 8  43,665,418  43,032,495 
ADVANCES 9  -    -   
FIXED ASSETS 10  -    -   
OTHER ASSETS 11  2,338,153  2,701,114 
TOTAL  48,530,284  47,604,500 
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 12  642,131  639,837 
BILLS FOR COLLECTION  17,851,150  16,575,098 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES 
TO ACCOUNTS 17 & 18

Schedules referred to herein form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
The Balance Sheet has been prepared in conformity with Form ‘A’ of the Third Schedule to the 
Banking Regulation Act, 1949.
As per our report of even date attached.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration 
Number : 105047W

For NatWe猀 Markets Plc
India Branch

Sd/-
Prateek Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number : 139144

Sd/-
Kapil Mathur
Chief Executive O�cer

Sd/-
Mithra Engineer
Chief Financial O�cer

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(Rs. in 000’s)

Schedules For the 
Year Ended 
31 March 

2023

For the 
Year Ended 
31 March 

2022
I. INCOME

INTEREST EARNED 13  1,905,038  997,768 
OTHER INCOME 14  6,200  4,655 
TOTAL  1,911,238  1,002,423 

II. EXPENDITURE
INTEREST EXPENDED 15  1,015,265  419,104 
OPERATING EXPENSES 16  781,593  935,636 
PROVISIONS & CONTINGENCIES  
[REFER SCHEDULE 18-14(E)]  934,864  442,553 
TOTAL  2,731,722  1,797,293 

III. PROFIT
NET PROFIT  FOR THE YEAR  
(REFER SCHEDULE  18-15.10)  (820,484)  (794,870)
TOTAL  (820,484)  (794,870)

IV. APPROPRIATIONS
TRANSFER TO STATUTORY RESERVE  -    -   
TRANSFER TO CAPITAL RESERVE  -    -   
INVESTMENT RESERVE  -    -   
BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO BALANCE SHEET  (820,484)  (794,870)
TOTAL  (820,484)  (794,870)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 17 & 18

Schedules referred to herein form an integral part of the Pro昀t and Loss Account.
The Pro昀t and Loss Account has been prepared in conformity with Form ‘B’ of the Third 
Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.
As per our report of even date attached.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration 
Number : 105047W

For NatWe猀 Markets Plc
India Branch

Sd/-
Prateek Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number : 139144

Sd/-
Kapil Mathur
Chief Executive O�cer

Sd/-
Mithra Engineer
Chief Financial O�cer

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH 2023
(Rs. in 000’s)

Year Ended
31 March 

2023

Year Ended
31 March 

2022
Cash 昀ows from Operating Activities
Net Pro昀t before taxes  110,202  (353,870)
Adju猀ment for
Depreciation on Bank's property  1,145  1 
(Pro昀t)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  (202)  (3)
Provision for Country Risk Exposures  4,178  1,553 
Operating cash 昀ow before changes in working capital  115,323  (352,319)
Changes in working capital
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liabilities and Provisions  303,167  249,485 
Increase  in Investments  (632,923)  (1,113,204)
Decrease in Other Assets  276,002  553,355 
Total of changes in working capital  (53,754)  (310,364)

 61,569  (662,683)
Taxes (paid)/Refund  (843,727)  413,638 
Net cash 昀ow used in Operating Activities  (782,158)  (249,045)
Cash 昀ows from Inve猀ing Activities
Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets  (943)  50,003 
Net cash 昀ow from Inve猀ing Activities  (943)  50,003 
Cash 昀ows from Financing Activities:
Other Borrowings (from Head of昀ce)  1,438,923  605,240 
Net cash 昀ow from Financing Activities  1,438,923  605,240 
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  655,822  406,198 
Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1  1,870,891  1,464,693 
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31  2,526,713  1,870,891 

 655,822  406,198 

Notes to the Cash 昀ow 猀atement
Cash and cash equivalents includes the following : (Rs. in 000’s)

31 March 
2023

31 March 
2022

Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India (Refer Schedule 6)  1,221,981  1,661,268 
Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice  
(Refer Schedule 7)  1,304,732  209,623 

 2,526,713  1,870,891 
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in 
Accounting Standard 3 speci昀ed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
As per our report of even date attached.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration 
Number : 105047W

For NatWe猀 Markets Plc
India Branch

Sd/-
Prateek Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number : 139144

Sd/-
Kapil Mathur
Chief Executive O�cer

Sd/-
Mithra Engineer
Chief Financial O�cer

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
As at 31 March 

2023
(Rs. in 000’s)

As at 31 March 
2022

(Rs. in 000’s)
SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL
I. Amount of Deposit kept with the Reserve Bank of India 

under Section 11(2)(b) of the Banking Regulation Act , 
1949

 9,000,000  9,000,000 

II. Head Of昀ce Account  28,028,210  28,028,210 
TOTAL  28,028,210  28,028,210 

SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES & SURPLUS
I Statutory Reserve

(Under Section 11(2)(b)(ii) of the Banking Regulation 
Act,1949)
Opening balance  301,372  301,372 
Additions during the year (Refer Schedule 18-15.13)  -    -   
Closing balance  301,372  301,372 

II Capital Reserve
Opening balance  14,307  14,307 
Additions during the year  -    -   
Closing balance  14,307  14,307 

III Investment Reserves
Opening balance  6,321  6,321 
Additions during the year (Refer Schedule 18-15.13)  -    -   
Closing balance  6,321  6,321 

IV Balance of Pro昀t and Loss Account
Opening balance  (2,927,743)  (2,132,873)
Additions during the year  (820,484)  (794,870)
Pro昀t remitted to Head Of昀ce during the year  -    -   
Closing balance  (3,748,227)  (2,927,743)

TOTAL  (3,426,227)  (2,605,743)

SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS
A I Demand Deposits

(i) From Banks  -  - 
(ii) From Others  -  - 
II Saving Bank Deposits  -  - 
III Term Deposits
(i) From Banks  -  - 
(ii) From Others  -  - 

TOTAL  -  - 
B (i) Deposits of Branches in India  -  - 

(ii) Deposits of Branches Outside India  -  - 
TOTAL  -  - 
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NatWest Markets Plc - India Branch
(Incorporated in Scotland with Limited Liability)

4.11. Impairment
 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for any indication 

of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is greater 
of asset’s net selling price and “value in use”. After impairment, depreciation is provided on 
revised carrying amount of asset over its remaining useful life. If at Balance Sheet date, there 
is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, recoverable 
amount is reassessed and asset is re昀ected at recoverable amount subject to a maximum 
of depreciable historical cost.

4.12. Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and in ATM/in transit, balances with RBI, 

balances with other banks and money at call and short notice (including the effect of changes 
in exchange rates of cash and cash equivalents in foreign currency).

4.13. Cash Flow Statement
 Cash Flows are reported using indirect method, whereby pro昀t/(loss) before tax is adjusted for 

the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. Cash 昀ows from operating, investing and 昀nancing activities of 
the Bank are segregated based on the available information.

4.14. Segment Reporting
 The Bank operates in three segments viz. Treasury, Retail Banking and Corporate and 

Wholesale Banking. These segments have been identi昀ed in line with the RBI guidelines 
and AS-17 on Segment Reporting after considering the nature and risk pro昀le of the products 
and services, target customer pro昀le, organisation structure and internal reporting system of 
the Bank.

 Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include amounts identi昀able to each of the 
segments as also amounts allocated, as estimated by Management. Assets and liabilities 
that cannot be allocated to identi昀able segments are grouped under unallocated assets and 
liabilities.

Schedule 18 : Notes to 昀nancial statements
1. Statutory disclosures as per the RBI guidelines
 1. Regulatory Capital
 a) Composition of Regulatory Capital

  The capital adequacy ratio computed under Basel III guidelines are as under:
(Rs. in 000’s)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31 March 
2023

31 March 
2022

i) Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET 1) (net of deductions, if any) 24,595,662 25,216,963

ii) Additional Tier 1 capital Nil Nil

iii) Tier 1 capital (i + ii) 24,595,662 25,216,963

iv) Tier 2 capital 31,456 31,275

v) Total capital (Tier 1+Tier 2) 24,627,118 25,248,238

vi) Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) 7,073,631 8,239,625

vii) CET 1 Ratio (CET 1 as a percentage of RWAs)* 347.71% 306.05%

viii) Tier 1 Ratio (Tier 1 capital as a percentage of RWAs) 347.71% 306.05%

ix) Tier 2 Ratio (Tier 2 capital as a percentage of RWAs) 0.44% 0.38%

x) Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) (Total Capital as a 
percentage of RWAs) 348.15% 306.42%

xi) Leverage Ratio 50.68% 52.97%

xii) Percentage of the shareholding of
a) Government of India
b) State Government (specify name)
c) Sponsor Bank

Nil Nil

xiii) Amount of paid-up equity capital raised during the year Nil Nil

xiv) Amount of non-equity Tier 1 capital raised during the year, of which:
Give list as per instrument type (perpetual non-cumulative 
preference shares, perpetual debt instruments, etc.). Commercial 
banks (excluding RRBs) shall also specify if the instruments are 
Basel II or Basel III compliant.

Nil Nil

xv) Amount of Tier 2 capital raised during the year, of which
Give list as per instrument type (perpetual non-cumulative 
preference shares, perpetual debt instruments, etc.). Commercial 
banks (excluding RRBs) shall also specify if the instruments are 
Basel II or Basel III compliant.

Nil Nil

 *Includes Capital Conservation Buffer (‘CCB’) of 2.50% & Global Systemically Important Bank 
(G-SIB) charge of 1% for the year ended 31 March 2023.
b) Draw down from Reserves
 The Bank has not made any draw down from the reserves for the Current year (Previous 

year Nil)
2.  Asset Liability Management
 a) Maturity Pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
 Maturity Pattern of Assets and Liabilities as at 31 March 2023 (Rs. in 000’s)
Particulars Deposit Advances Investment Borrowings FCY 

Assets
FCY 

Liabilities
Up to 1 day Nil Nil Nil Nil 308,794 Nil

2 to 7 days Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

8 to 14 days Nil Nil Nil Nil 68,636 Nil

15 to 30 days Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

31 days to  
2 months Nil Nil 2,288,410 3,837,010 Nil 3,854,654

Over 2 months & 
up to 3 months Nil Nil 10,587,033 Nil Nil Nil

Over 3 months & 
up to 6 months Nil Nil 30,789,975 2,063,700 18,271,706 2,073,189

Over 6 months & 
up to 1 Year Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Over 1 Year &  
up to 3 Years Nil Nil Nil 12,638,897 31,471 12,697,012

Over 3 years & 
upto 5 Years Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Over 5 years Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total Nil Nil 43,665,418 18,539,607 18,680,607 18,624,855

 Maturity Pattern of Assets and Liabilities as at 31 March 2022 (Rs. in 000’s)
Particulars Deposit Advances Investment Borrowings FCY 

Assets
FCY 

Liabilities
Up to 1 day Nil Nil Nil Nil 70,713 Nil
2 to 7 days Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
8 to 14 days Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
15 to 30 days Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
31 days to  
2 months Nil Nil 2,237,455 Nil Nil Nil
Over 2 months & 
up to 3 months Nil Nil 12,819,142 Nil Nil Nil
Over 3 months & 
up to 6 months Nil Nil 27,975,898 Nil 17,115,145 Nil
Over 6 months & 
up to 1 Year Nil Nil Nil 17,100,684 Nil 17,125,812
Over 1 Year &  
up to 3 Years Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Over 3 years & 
upto 5 Years Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Over 5 years Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil 43,032,495 17,100,684 17,185,858 17,125,812

Notes:
1) In accordance with the RBI guidelines, Management has made certain assumptions in 

respect of behavioural maturities of non-term assets and liabilities while compiling their 
maturity pro昀les.

2) Investments are bucketed as per residual maturity.
b) Liquidity coverage ratio
 The Bank manages funding and liquidity risk through a formal governance structure of 

India Assets Liability Committee (ALCO). ALCO comprises of senior management of 
the Bank and meets periodically. The ALCO oversees funding and liquidity position of 
the Bank and provides guidance and oversight. ALCO is responsible to oversee and 
ensure compliance with regulatory and internal requirements related to Liquidity risk 
management. ALCO is assisted in its oversight role by Treasury, Finance, Operations 
and other Business Units.

 The Bank has adopted the Basel III framework on liquidity standards as prescribed 
by the RBI and has put in place requisite systems and processes to enable periodic 
computation and reporting of LCR.

 The Bank follows the criteria laid down by the RBI for month-end calculation of High Quality 
Liquid Assets (HQLAs), gross out昀ows and in昀ows within the next 30-day period. HQLAs 
of the Bank primarily consist of Cash, Government of India (GoI) Bonds & Treasury-Bills 
and Foreign Sovereign Securities. Weighted out昀ows mainly consist of other contingent 
funding liabilities. Weighted in昀ows primarily consist of in昀ows on account of interbank 
placements.

Particulars  
(Amount in crores)

Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Consolidated 
Average April 
to March 2023

Average Average Average Average Average
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1 Total High Quality 
Liquid Assets (HQLA)

4,285 4,285 4,355 4,355 4,425 4,425 4,339 4,339 4,351 4,351

Cash Out昀ows
2 Retail deposits and 

deposits from small 
business customers,  
of which:

(i) Stable deposits
(ii) Less stable deposits
3 Unsecured wholesale 

funding, of which:
(i) Operational deposits  

(all counterparties)
(ii) Non-operational 

deposits  
(all counterparties)

(iii) Unsecured debt 116 116 469 469 125 125 475 475 296 296
4 Secured wholesale 

funding
5 Additional requirements, 

of which
(i) Out昀ows related to 

derivative exposures 
and other collateral 
requirements -

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

(ii) Out昀ows related to 
loss of funding on debt 
products

(iii) Credit and liquidity 
facilities

- - - - - - - - - -

6 Other contractual 
funding obligations

14 14 27 27 23 23 42 42 27 27

7 Other contingent 
funding obligations

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 Total Cash Out昀ows 133 133 499 499 151 151 520 520 326 326
Cash In昀ows (A)

9 Secured lending  
(e.g. reverse repos)

81 81 51 51 14 14 72 72 55 55

10 In昀ows from fully 
performing exposures

- - - - - - - - - -

11 Other cash in昀ows 23 23 94 94 46 46 71 71 58 58
12 Total Cash In昀ows 104 104 145 145 60 60 143 143 113 113
13 Total HQLA 4,285 4,355 4,425 4,339 4,351
14 Total Net Cash Out昀ows 

(B)
33 354 91 377 214

15 Liquidity Coverage 
Ratio (%)

12,921% 1,229% 4,861% 1,150% 2,043%

 Based on the above, average LCR (all currency) for the Bank for the year ended 31 
March 2023 is 2,043% against the regulatory minimum of 100%.The LCR is computed 
as simple averages of daily observations from 01 April 2022 to 31 March 2023.

Particulars 
(Amount in crores)

Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Consolidated 
Average April 

to March 
2022

Average Average Average Average Average
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1 Total High Quality 
Liquid Assets (HQLA)

4,189 4,189 4,214 4,214 4,317 4,317 4,220 4,220 4,235 4,235

Cash Out昀ows
2 Retail deposits and 

deposits from small 
business customers,  
of which:

(i) Stable deposits
(ii) Less stable deposits

Particulars 
(Amount in crores)

Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Consolidated 
Average April 

to March 
2022

Average Average Average Average Average
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3 Unsecured wholesale 
funding, of which:

(i) Operational deposits  
(all counterparties)

(ii) Non-operational 
deposits 
(all counterparties)

(iii) Unsecured debt 206 206 541 541 111 111 426 426 321 321

4 Secured wholesale 
funding

5 Additional requirements, 
of which

(i) Out昀ows related to 
derivative exposures 
and other collateral 
requirements -

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

(ii) Out昀ows related to 
loss of funding on debt 
products

(iii) Credit and liquidity 
facilities

- - - - - - - - - -

6 Other contractual 
funding obligations

9 9 14 14 9 9 35 35 17 17

7 Other contingent 
funding obligations

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 Total Cash Out昀ows 218 218 559 559 123 123 465 465 341 341
Cash In昀ows (A)
9 Secured lending  

(e.g. reverse repos)
47 47 50 50 30 30 94 94 55 55

10 In昀ows from fully 
performing exposures

- - - - - - - - - -

11 Other cash in昀ows 28 28 30 30 22 22 21 21 25 25

12 Total Cash In昀ows 75 75 80 80 52 52 115 115 80 80
13 Total HQLA 4,189 4,215 4,317 4,220 4,235

14 Total Net Cash Out昀ows 
(B)

143 479 71 349 261

15 Liquidity Coverage 
Ratio (%)

2,929% 880% 6,080% 1,209% 1,623%

 Based on the above, average LCR (all currency) for the Bank for the year ended 31 
March 2022 is 1,623% against the regulatory minimum of 100%.The LCR is computed 
as simple averages of daily observations from 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2022.

c) Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR)
 The NSFR promotes resilience over a longer term time horizon by requiring banks to 

fund their activities with more stable sources of funding on an ongoing basis.
 The Bank manages funding and liquidity risk through a formal governance structure of 

India Assets Liability Committee (ALCO). ALCO comprises of senior management of 
the Bank and meets periodically. The ALCO oversees funding and liquidity position of 
the Bank and provides guidance and oversight. ALCO is responsible to oversee and 
ensure compliance with regulatory and internal requirements related to Liquidity risk 
management. ALCO is assisted in its oversight role by Treasury, Finance, Operations 
and other Business Units.

 The Bank has adopted the Basel III framework on liquidity standards as prescribed 
by the RBI and has put in place requisite systems and processes to enable periodic 
computation and reporting of NSFR.

 The Bank follows the criteria laid down by the RBI for quarter-end calculation of Available 
stable funding (ASF) and Required stable funding (RSF) within the next 365 days period. 
RSF consists of HQLAs of the Bank which is primarily Cash, Government of India (GoI) 
Bonds & Treasury-Bills and Foreign Sovereign Securities. ASF mainly consist of other 
funding liabilities.

 In accordance with the RBI guidelines, banks are required to make consolidated Pillar 3 
and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) disclosures under the Basel III Framework. These 
disclosures are available on the Bank’s website at the following link.

	 https://www.natwestmarkets.in/help-you/nwm-昀nancial-statements.html
 The disclosures have not been subjected to audit by the statutory auditors of the Bank.

3. Investments
 a) Composition of Investment portfolio
 As at 31 March 2023 (Rs. in 000’s)

Investments in India Investments outside India Total 
Investments

Government 
Securities

Other 
Approved 
Securities

Shares Debentures 
and Bonds

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

Others Total 
investments 

in India

Government 
securities 
(including 

local
authorities)

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

Others Total 
Investments 

outside
India

Held to Maturity Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Gross Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Less: Provision for non-
performing investments (NPI)

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Available for Sale 25,393,712 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,393,712 Nil Nil 18,271,706 18,271,706 43,665,418

Gross 25,393,712 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,393,712 Nil Nil 18,271,706 18,271,706 43,665,418

Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net 25,393,712 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,393,712 Nil Nil 18,271,706 18,271,706 43,665,418

Held for Trading Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Gross Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total Investments 25,393,712 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,393,712 Nil Nil 18,271,706 18,271,706 43,665,418

Less: Provision for non-
performing investments

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net 25,393,712 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,393,712 Nil Nil 18,271,706 18,271,706 43,665,418

 As at 31 March 2022 (Rs. in 000’s)

Investments in India Investments outside India Total 
Investments

Government 
Securities

Other 
Approved 
Securities

Shares Debentures 
and Bonds

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

Others Total 
investments 

in India

Government 
securities 

(including local
authorities)

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

Others Total 
Investments 

outside
India

Held to Maturity Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Gross Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Less: Provision for non-
performing investments (NPI)

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Available for Sale 25,946,379 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,946,379 Nil Nil 17,086,116 17,086,116 43,032,495

Gross 25,946,379 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,946,379 Nil Nil 17,086,116 17,086,116 43,032,495

Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net 25,946,379 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,946,379 Nil Nil 17,086,116 17,086,116 43,032,495

Held for Trading Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Gross Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total Investments 25,946,379 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,946,379 Nil Nil 17,086,116 17,086,116 43,032,495

Less: Provision for non-
performing investments

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net 25,946,379 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,946,379 Nil Nil 17,086,116 17,086,116 43,032,495
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 b) Movement of Provisions for Depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve
(Rs. in 000’s)

Particulars 31 March 
2023

31 March 
2022

i) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
a) Opening balance
b) Add: Provisions made during the year
c) Less: Write off / write back of excess provisions during the year
d) Closing balance

ii) Movement of Investment Fluctuation Reserve
a) Opening balance
b) Add: Amount transferred during the year
c) Less: Drawdown
d) Closing balance

iii) Closing balance in IFR as a percentage of closing balance of 
investments in AFS and HFT/Current category

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

 c) Sale and transfers to/from HTM category
 The Bank does not hold any Investments in the HTM category and accordingly 

shifting of Investments from HTM category is not applicable in the Current year 31 
March 2023 and the Previous year 31 March 2022.

 d) Non-SLR investment portfolio
 i) Non-performing non-SLR investments (Rs. in 000’s)
Sr. No. Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a) Opening balance Nil Nil
b) Additions during the year since 1st April Nil Nil
c) Reductions during the above period Nil Nil
d) Closing balance Nil Nil
e) Total provisions held Nil Nil

 ii) Issuer composition of non-SLR investments
 Non SLR investments as at 31 March 2023 (Rs. in 000’s)

Sr.
No.

Issuer Amount Extent of 
Private 

Placement

Extent of Below 
Investment Grade 

Securities

Extent of 
Unrated 

Securities

Extent of 
Unlisted 

Securities
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
(i) PSUs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(ii) FIs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iii) Banks Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Private Corporates Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(v) Subsidiaries/ 

Joint Ventures
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(vi) Others* 18,271,706 Nil Nil Nil 18,271,706
(vii) Provision held 

towards depreciation
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total 18,271,706 Nil Nil Nil 18,271,706

 Non SLR investments as at 31 March 2022 (Rs. in 000’s)
Sr.
No.

Issuer Amount Extent of 
Private 

Placement

Extent of Below 
Investment Grade 

Securities

Extent of 
Unrated 

Securities

Extent of 
Unlisted 

Securities
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
(i) PSUs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(ii) FIs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iii) Banks Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Private Corporates Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(v) Subsidiaries/ 

Joint Ventures
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(vi) Others* 17,086,116 Nil Nil Nil 17,086,116
(vii) Provision held 

towards depreciation
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total 17,086,116 Nil Nil Nil 17,086,116

 * US Treasury bills
 e) Repo transactions (in face value terms)
 Year ended 31 March 2023 (Rs. in 000’s)
Particulars Minimum 

outstanding 
during the 

year

Maximum 
outstanding 
during the 

year

Daily 
average 

outstanding 
during the 

year

As at 31 
March 2023

Securities sold under repos
 i. Government securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
 ii. Corporate debt securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
Securities purchased under 
reverse repos
 i. Government securities Nil 1,056,890 414,017 Nil
 ii. Corporate debt securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

 Year ended 31 March 2022 (Rs. in 000’s)
Particulars Minimum 

outstanding 
during the 

year

Maximum 
outstanding 
during the 

year

Daily 
average 

outstanding 
during the 

year

As at 31 
March 2022

Securities sold under repos
 i. Government securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
 ii. Corporate debt securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
Securities purchased under 
reverse repos
 i. Government securities Nil 7,267,160 550,403 732,690
 ii. Corporate debt securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

4.  Asset Quality
 a) Classi昀cation of advances and provisions held
 As at 31 March 2023 (Rs. in 000’s)
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f) Implementation of IFRS converged Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India has noti昀ed the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 on February 16, 2015. Further a press release 
was issued by the MCA on January 18 2016 outlining the road map for implementation 
of Ind AS converged with IFRS for banks. Banks in India had to comply with Ind AS for 
昀nancial statements for the accounting period beginning April 1 2018 onwards, with 
comparatives for the period ending March 31 2018 or thereafter. However, necessary 
legislative amendments to make the format of 昀nancial statements prescribed in the 
Third Schedule to Banking Regulation Act , 1949 , compatible with accounts under Ind 
AS , are under consideration of the Government of India. In view of this, on March 22, 
2019, implementation of Ind AS had been deferred by RBI till further notice.

 In line with RBI directive, banks are required to submit proforma Ind AS 昀nancial 
statements at periodic level as stipulated by RBI. Presently, it has to be submitted on half 
yearly basis as per the timeline given by RBI. During the year ended March 31, 2023 in 
line with RBI directive, the Bank has prepared the proforma Ind AS 昀nancial statements 
as of September 30 2022 and submitted the same to RBI.

 g) Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium (Rs. in 000’s)
Sr 
No.

Particulars 31 March 
2023

31 March 
2022

i) Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 22 13
ii) Arrears in payment of DICGC premium Nil Nil

15. Other disclosures
15.1. Employee Bene昀ts
 Provident Fund
 The Bank has recognised Rs. 1,878 thousand (Previous Year: Rs. 1,981 thousand) in Pro昀t 

and Loss Account for the period under Schedule 16 – ‘Payments to and Provisions for 
Employees’ towards contribution to Provident Fund. The Bank has no further obligations.

 Gratuity and Pension
 The Bank has de昀ned bene昀t scheme for gratuity wherein the bene昀t payable to the employees 

is greater of the Bank’s own gratuity scheme rules and the provisions of the Payment of 
Gratuity Act, 1972 (amended to date). The Bank also has a de昀ned bene昀t pension scheme 
for eligible employees providing a maximum pension of 50% of “pensionable salary”. The 
scheme also provides for an annual increase of pension payment to eligible employees which 
can be varied at the discretion of the Bank.

 The following tables summarise the components of net bene昀t expense recognised in Pro昀t 
and Loss Account, funded status and amounts recognised in Balance Sheet for Gratuity and 
Pension bene昀t plans.

 Pro昀t and Loss Account
 Net employee bene昀t/ expense (recognised in Payments to and Provisions for Employees)

(Rs. in crores)
Gratuity Pension

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost Nil Nil 0.08 0.09

Interest cost on bene昀t 
obligation

Nil Nil 32.05 26.80

Expected return on plan 
assets

Nil Nil (0.10) (0.17)

Net actuarial (gain)/loss 
recognised in the year

0.05 0.21 (0.75) 30.41

Past Service Cost Nil Nil Nil Nil

Settlement Cost Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net (bene昀t)/expense 0.05 0.21 31.28 57.13

 Balance Sheet
 Details of Provision for Gratuity and Pension (Rs. in crores)

Gratuity Pension
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of de昀ned 
bene昀t obligation

2.53 2.84 480.00 456.76

Fair value of plan assets Nil Nil 11.77 13.70

Unrecognised Past 
Service Cost

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net Asset/(Liability) (2.53) (2.84) (468.23) (443.06)

 Changes in the present value of the de昀ned bene昀t obligation are as follows
(Rs. in crores)

Gratuity Pension
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening de昀ned bene昀t 
obligation

2.84 3.75 456.76 405.52

Acquisitions Nil Nil Nil Nil

Interest cost / (Credit) Nil Nil 32.05 26.80

Settlement Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil Nil Nil

Plans Amendment Cost/
(Credit)

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Current service cost Nil Nil 0.08 0.09

Prior Period Cost Nil Nil Nil Nil

Bene昀ts paid (0.36) (1.12) (8.56) (6.49)

Actuarial (gains)/losses 
on obligation

0.05 0.21 (0.33) 30.84

Closing de昀ned bene昀t 
obligation

2.53 2.84 480.00 456.76

 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows (Rs. in crores)
Gratuity Pension

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening fair value of 
plan assets

Nil Nil 13.70 14.03

Acquisitions Nil Nil Nil Nil

Expected return Nil Nil 0.10 0.17

Contributions by 
employer

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Bene昀ts paid Nil Nil (2.46) (0.93)

Actuarial gains/(losses) Nil Nil 0.43 0.43

Closing fair value of 
plan assets

Nil Nil 11.77 13.70

 Principle actuarial assumptions at Balance Sheet date
Gratuity Pension

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount Rate 7.00%p.a. Nil 7.30%p.a 7.30%p.a

Expected rate of Return 
on Plan Assets

Nil Nil 6.50%p.a 6.50%p.a

Salary Escalation Rate 3.50%p.a 4.00%p.a 3.50%p.a 4.00%p.a

Mortality Rate NA 100% of Indian Individual 
Annuitant’s

Mortality Table (2012-15)

 Experience Adjustments are as follows (Rs. in crores)
Gratuity

Particulars 31 March 
2023

31 March 
2022

31 March 
2021

31 March 
2020

31 March 
2019

De昀ned Bene昀t Obligation (2.53) (2.84) (3.75) (3.61) (3.81)
Plan Assets Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Funded Status (2.53) (2.84) (3.75) (3.61) (3.81)
Gain/(Loss) Adjustments on Plan 
Liabilities

(0.44) (0.19) (0.16) (0.13) (0.11)

Gain/(Loss) Adjustments on Plan 
Assets

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Gain/(Loss) due to changes in 
assumptions

0.39 (0.02) 0.02 0.00 0.00

Pension
Particulars 31 March 

2023
31 March 

2022
31 March 

2021
31 March 

2020
31 March 

2019
De昀ned Bene昀t Obligation (480.00) (456.76) (405.52) (397.06) (318.43)
Plan Assets 11.77 13.70 14.03 16.79 18.03
Funded Status (468.23) (443.06) (391.49) (380.27) (300.40)
Gain/(Loss) Adjustments on Plan 
Liabilities

(1.67) (4.10) (3.67) ( 2.76) (2.36)

Gain/(Loss) Adjustments on Plan 
Assets

0.43 0.43 0.60 (0.50) 0.26

Gain/(Loss) due to changes in 
assumptions

1.99 (26.74) 12.07 (59.40) (0.68)

 Expected Contribution in next Financial Year (Rs. in crores)
Gratuity Pension

Particulars March 2023 March 2022 March 2023 March 2022
Expected Contribution Nil Nil 10.12 11.27

 Investment Pattern is as follows
Gratuity Pension

Particulars 31 March
2023

31 March
2022

31 March
2023

31 March 
2022

Percentage Percentage
Government of India Securities (Central and State) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector Bonds) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Cash (including Deposits) Nil Nil 100% 100%
Other (including assets under scheme of Insurance) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil 100% 100%

 Estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of in昀ation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in employment 
market. Overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the nature of the 
investments held as at date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

 Above information is certi昀ed by Actuary.
15.2. Investments
 Investments in Government Securities include the following pledged securities (at Face value):

(Rs. in 000’s)
Particulars 31 March 

2023
31 March 

2022
Held with RBI as collateral for Real Time Gross Settlement System 
(RTGS) towards Intra-Day Liquidity (IDL) facility

250,000 250,000

Held with RBI as collateral for LAF borrowing Nil Nil
Held with RBI for requirements u/s 11(2)(b) of Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949

9,000,000 9,000,000

Held with Clearing Corporation of India Limited (CCIL) 578,000 578,000

15.3. Head O�ce charges
 During the current and the previous year, no transfers have been made to the Head Of昀ce 

Charges.
15.4. Other expenses
 Details of expenses included in Other Expenditure in Schedule 16, exceeding 1% of the total 

income are set out below:
(Rs. in 000’s)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Record Management Cost 39,032 39,898
Outsourced Costs - 16,956
IT Related Expenses 29,553 25,250
Total 68,585 82,104

15.5. Operating Lease (Rs. in 000’s)
SI. 
No.

Particulars 31 March 
2023

31 March 
2022

1 Total future minimum lease payments as at year end:
Not later than one year 53,381 26,786
Later than one year but not later than 昀ve years 24,504 Nil
Later than 昀ve years Nil Nil

2 Lease payments recognised in the Pro昀t and Loss 
Account in Schedule 16.

60,666 59,460

 Operating lease comprises of premises. There are no sub-lease arrangements in respect of 
the current and Previous years.

15.6. Segmental reporting
 In terms of the RBI Guidelines on Segment Reporting, business of the Bank is divided into 

following segments viz. Treasury, Retail Banking and Corporate/Wholesale Banking. The 
Bank considers below mentioned segments as primary segments. The principle activities of 
these segments are as under:

Segment Principal Activities
Treasury Treasury Operations include investments in Government securities and 

money market operations, derivatives and foreign exchange operations 
on the proprietary account and for customers.

Retail Banking Retail Banking constitutes lending to individuals/small businesses subject 
to orientation, product and granularity criterion and also includes low value 
individual exposures not exceeding threshold limit of Rs. 5 crores as de昀ned 
by the RBI. Retail Banking activities also include liability products.

Corporate/ 
Wholesale Banking

Corporate/Wholesale Banking include corporate relationships not included 
under Retail Banking.

 Income, expenses, assets and liabilities are either speci昀cally identi昀ed with individual 
segments or are allocated to segments on a systematic basis. Support Divisions costs are 
considered as unallocated.

 Revenues of the Treasury Segment primarily consist of interest income on securities, 
money market operations,. Principal expenses of this segment comprise interest on market 
borrowings/ Head of昀ce borrowings, personnel cost and other direct overheads and allocated 
expenses.

 Revenues from the Retail Banking activity are derived from interest earned on loans classi昀ed 
under this segment and fees earned on retail products. Expenses of the Corporate/Wholesale 
Banking and Retail Banking activity primarily comprise interest expense on deposits, expenses 
for operating the branch, personnel costs, other direct overheads and allocated expenses.

 Geographical segments
 The Branch renders its services within one geographical segment and have no of昀ces or 

signi昀cant assets outside India.
 Segment results for 31 March 2023 are set out below: (Rs. in 000’s)
Particulars Treasury Retail 

Banking
Corporate/ 
Wholesale 
Banking

Unallocated Total

Revenue 1,857,077 Nil Nil 54,161 1,911,238
Less: Inter Segment Revenue* Nil
Revenue net of Inter segment 1,911,238
Operating Pro昀t/(Loss) 800,416 Nil Nil (690,214) 110,202
Taxes (930,686) (930,686)
Net Pro昀t/(Loss) (820,484)
Segment Assets 46,236,154 376 Nil 2,293,754 48,530,284
Segment Liabilities 18,818,200 14,828 Nil 29,697,256 48,530,284
Capital expenditure during the year Nil Nil
Depreciation on 昀xed assets 
during the year

1,145 1,145

 Segment results for 31 March 2022 are set out below: (Rs. in 000’s)
Particulars Treasury Retail 

Banking
Corporate/ 
Wholesale 
Banking

Unallocated Total

Revenue 952,039 Nil Nil 50,384 1,002,423
Less: Inter Segment Revenue Nil
Revenue net of Inter segment 1,002,423
Operating Pro昀t 214,273 Nil Nil (568,143) (353,870)
Taxes (441,000) (441,000)
Net Pro昀t/(Loss) (794,870)
Segment Assets 44,945,349 58 Nil 2,659,093 47,604,500
Segment Liabilities 18,342,188 18,541 Nil 29,243,771 47,604,500
Capital expenditure during the 
year

Nil Nil

Depreciation on 昀xed assets 
during the year

1 1

 Note: In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been 
made by Management. Segment liabilities include Share Capital and Reserves and Surplus.

 The Bank has discontinued Banking business as at 31st Dec 2019. Accordingly, for the 
Current year the Segment classi昀cation re昀ects only Treasury, Retail and Unallocated.

15.7. Related Party Disclosures
(i) The Information required in this regard in accordance with Accounting Standard 18 on 

‘Related Party Disclosures’, speci昀ed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
as applicable read with guidelines issued by the RBI in so far as they are applicable to 
the Bank, is provided below:

Sr. 
No.

Relationship Name

1 Parent/Head Of昀ce and branches of Head 
Of昀ce and ultimate holding company

NatWest Group plc (Ultimate holding 
company) and its branches

2 Subsidiaries of Parent (Head Of昀ce) and 
entities under common control with whom 
there are transactions

RBS Services India Private Limited
National Westminster Bank plc

3 Key Management Personnel Kapil Mathur, Chief Executive Of昀cer - India

 The transactions with related parties are detailed below: (Rs. in 000’s)
Relationship and Nature of 
Transactions

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year 
ended 

31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 

2023

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year 
ended 

31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 

2022

Parent/Head O�ce and branches of Head O�ce
Deposits Nil Nil Nil Nil
Balance due from Banks outside 
India

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Balance due to Banks outside 
India

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Borrowings * 18,539,607 * 17,100,684
Foreign exchange deals (Notional) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Derivative transactions (Notional) Nil Nil Nil Nil

Relationship and Nature of 
Transactions

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year 
ended 

31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 

2023

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year 
ended 

31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 

2022

Non-funded commitments Nil Nil Nil Nil
Other receivables Nil Nil Nil Nil
Other payables * 85,249 * 25,128
Subsidiaries of Parent (Head O�ce) and entities under common control
Advances Nil Nil Nil Nil
Balance due from Banks outside 
India

* 541 * 513

Deposits Nil Nil Nil Nil
Non-funded commitments Nil Nil Nil Nil
Foreign exchange deals (Notional) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Other receivables * Nil * Nil
Other payables * 1,360 * 1,217

 * Maximum amounts outstanding during the year have not been given/cannot be determined.
(Rs. in 000’s)

Pro昀t and Loss Account 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Parent/Head O�ce and branches of Head O�ce
Expenses incurred Nil Nil
Other Income Nil Nil
Interest expense 1,015,265 419,104
Interest income Nil Nil
Subsidiaries of Parent (Head O�ce) and entities under common control
Secondment revenue and other costs recovered Nil Nil
Expenses recovered Nil Nil
Services rendered Nil Nil
Services received 17,321 16,956
Interest income Nil Nil
Interest expense Nil Nil
Other expense 25,739 42,171
Fee/commission income Nil Nil
Other Income Nil Nil

15.8. Deferred taxation
 The Bank follows the accounting policy for taxes on income in line with the Accounting 

Standard 22 (AS-22) on ‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’ speci昀ed under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.

 Since the Bank has discontinued its business operations from 31 December 2019, it has not 
been claiming any operating expenditure (including depreciation on 昀xed assets) in its return 
of income. Given the above there are no items of timing difference between taxable income 
and accounting income that are capable of reversal subsequently and hence no deferred tax 
asset or liability has been recognised.

15.9. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
 In accordance with the provisions of AS 29, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Asset’, speci昀ed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable given below 
are brief description of the nature of contingent liabilities recognised by the Bank.

 Description of Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liability Brief Description
Claims against the Bank not 
acknowledged as debts

Includes various legal proceedings and outstanding tax matters in 
the normal course of business, which are disputed by the Bank.

Liability on account of forward 
exchange and derivative 
contracts.

The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts, currency 
options, forward rate agreements, currency swaps and interest 
rate swaps with inter-bank participants on its own account and 
for customers. Forward exchange contracts are commitments to 
buy or sell foreign currency at a future date at the contracted rate. 
Currency swaps are commitments to exchange cash 昀ows by way 
of interest interest/principal in one currency against another, based 
on predetermined rates. Interest rate swaps are commitments 
to exchange 昀xed and 昀oating interest rate cash 昀ows. Forward 
Rate Agreements are agreements to pay or receive a certain 
sum based on a differential interest rate on a notional amount 
for an agreed period. The notional amount that are recorded, as 
contingent liabilities are typically amounts used as a benchmark 
for the calculation of the interest component of the contracts.

Guarantees given on 
behalf of Constituents, 
Acceptances, Endorsements 
and other Obligations

As a part of its commercial banking activities, the Bank issues 
documentary credit and guarantees on behalf of its customers. 
Guarantees generally represent irrevocable assurances that the 
Bank will make payments in the event of the customer failing to 
ful昀l its 昀nancial or performance obligations.

Other items for which the 
Bank is contingently liable 
– Others

This includes Deposits transferred to Depositor Education and 
Awareness Fund.

15.10. Prior period items
 There were no prior period items that have been debited / credited in the Current period and 

Previous year’s Pro昀t and Loss Account.
15.11. Software
 Included in ‘Other Fixed Assets’ is capitalised software amounting: (Rs. in 000’s)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
At Book Value
Beginning of the year 35,613 39,734
Additions during the year Nil Nil
Deductions during the year Nil (4,121)
Total 35,613 35,613
Depreciation
Beginning of the year 35,613 39,734
Additions during the year Nil Nil
Deductions during the year Nil (4,121)
Total 35,613 35,613
Net Book Value Nil Nil

15.12. To the extent of the information received by the Bank from its vendors, there are no transactions 
with “suppliers” as de昀ned under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 during the year ended 31 March 2023, hence disclosures as required under the 
said Act are not applicable.

15.13. During the year, the Bank has appropriated Nil (Previous Year : Nil) to Statutory Reserve 
account. Further, during the year, the Bank has appropriated Nil (Previous Year : Nil) (net 
of applicable taxes and transfer to statutory reserve) to Investment Reserve Account, being 
excess of provision on diminution of Investments credited to Pro昀t and Loss Account, in 
accordance with the RBI guidelines.

15.14. Other liabilities
 Details of liabilities included in Others (including provisions) in Schedule 5, exceeding 1% of 

the total assets are set out below:
 (Rs. in 000’s)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employees’ bene昀ts 4,856,822 4,632,335
Total 4,856,822 4,632,335

15.15. Other assets
 Details of assets included in Others in Schedule 11, exceeding 1% of the total assets are set 

out below:
(Rs. in 000’s)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Priority Sector Lending deposits 1,282,266 1,623,166
Total 1,282,266 1,623,166

15.16. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
 As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Bank is required to 

contribute 2% of the average gross pro昀t of Previous 3 years. Gross amount required to 
be spent by the Bank during the year is Nil (Previous Year: Rs. 9,597 thousands). Amount 
actually spent during the year is Nil (Previous Year: Rs. 9,597 thousands).

15.17. The Bank has 昀led an application with RBI to close its business and operations with effect 
from close of business on 31 December 2019 vide letter dated 11 September 2019. Further 
the Bank has 昀led an application with RBI to surrender its Banking licence issued under 
section 22 of the Banking Regulation Act ,1949 vide letter dated 14 May 2020.

15.18. As at 31 March 2023 the Bank has Guarantee outstanding amounting to Rs. 156 thousands 
(Previous Year : Rs. 156 thousands). The Bank has provided for the same and accordingly 
not disclosed as Contingent Liability.

15.19. Disclosure under Rule 11(e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
 The Bank has not given any loan or accepted any deposits during the year ended 31 March 

2023 and 31 March 2022 because the Bank is in the process of surrendering the banking 
license as mentioned in para 15.17 above. Therefore, no speci昀c disclosure is required under 
Rule 11(e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

15.20. Figures for the Previous year have been regrouped/reclassi昀ed, where necessary, to conform 
to Current year’s presentation.

As per our report of even date attached.
For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration 
Number : 105047W

For NatWe猀 Markets Plc
India Branch

Sd/-
Prateek Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number : 139144

Sd/-
Kapil Mathur
Chief Executive O�cer

Sd/-
Mithra Engineer
Chief Financial O�cer

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023

Place : Mumbai
Date: 15 June 2023
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NatWest Markets Plc - India Branch
(Incorporated in Scotland with Limited Liability)

BASEL III - PILLAR III DISCLOSURES AS AT 31 March 2023
NatWest Markets Plc - India Branch (“the Bank”) is subject to the Basel III framework with effect from 
27 February 2017 as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The Basel III framework consists 
of three-mutually reinforcing pillars:
(I) Pillar 1: Minimum capital requirements for credit risk, Market risk and operational risk
(II) Pillar 2: Supervisory review of capital adequacy
(III) Pillar 3: Market discipline
Market discipline (Pillar 3) comprises disclosures on the capital adequacy and risk management 
framework of the Bank. These disclosures have been set out in the following sections.
The Basel III capital regulations were effective 1 April, 2013 as per RBI guidelines in India.
1. Scope of Application
 The Pillar 3 disclosures, being published in accordance with the requirements of RBI for a 

branch of foreign bank, do not require the disclosures pertaining to the consolidation of entities.
 NatWest Markets Plc Group Pillar 3 disclosures are published in accordance with the 

requirements of the Capital Requirements Directive on the Group Investor relations website 
www.investors.nwm.com and should be read together with the Group Annual Report and 
Accounts.

 To align with the global strategy of its parent, during the 昀nancial year 2019-20, the India branch 
re-named itself from The Royal Bank of Scotland plc to NatWest Markets Plc. This was duly 
approved by Reserve Bank of India vide its letter DBR.IBD.No. 10746/23.03.031/2018-19 dated 
June 24, 2019.

 The Bank has 昀led an application with RBI to close its business and operations with effect from 
close of business on 31 December 2019 vide letter dated 11 September 2019.

 Further the Bank has 昀led an application with RBI to surrender its Banking licence issued under 
section 22 of the Banking Regulation Act ,1949 vide letter dated 14 May 2020.

2. Capital Structure
 Summary information on main terms and conditions/features of capital instruments
 The Bank’s regulatory capital is classi昀ed for disclosure according to the RBI capital adequacy 

requirements. Common Equity Tier-I capital includes Interest free funds received from Head 
Of昀ce.

 Tier-II Capital includes country risk provision & Investment reserve account.
3. Capital Adequacy
 a. Capital Management
  The Bank actively manages its capital position to ensure compliance with regulatory norms.
 Organisational set-up
 The capital management framework of the Bank is administered by the India Asset Liability 

Committee (ALCO) and the India Governance and Control Committee (GCC) under the 
supervision of the Management Team Committee (MTCo).

 Regulatory capital
 The Bank is subject to the capital adequacy norms stipulated by the RBI guidelines on Basel III. 

The RBI guidelines on Basel III require the Bank to maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to 
risk weighted assets of 12.5% (including the CCB & GSIB charge), with a minimum Tier-I capital 
adequacy ratio of 7% and Common equity capital adequacy ratio of 5.5%. The total capital 
adequacy ratio of the Bank at 31 March 2023 as per the RBI guidelines on Basel III is 348.15% 
with a Tier-I capital adequacy ratio of 347.71% and Common equity capital adequacy ratio 
including capital conservation buffer and GSIB (capital charge for globally systemic important 
banks) 347.71%. Banks are required to maintain a capital conservation buffer of 2.50% for the 
year 2023 comprised of Common Equity Tier I capital above the regulatory minimum capital 
requirement of 9%. Under Pillar 1 of the RBI guidelines on Basel III, the Bank follows the 
Standardised Approach for Credit Risk, Standardised Duration method for Market Risk and 
Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk.

 Internal assessment of capital
 Effective management of the Bank’s capital is achieved by supervision of actual capital ratios. 

The Bank’s capital management framework also includes a comprehensive internal capital 
adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) conducted annually. The ICAAP encompasses capital 
planning for one year time horizon, identi昀cation and measurement of material risks and the 
relationship between risk and capital.

 The Bank’s capital management framework is complemented by its risk management framework 
(detailed in the following sections), which includes a comprehensive assessment of material 
risks.

 Stress testing which is a key aspect of the ICAAP and the risk management framework provides 
an insight on the impact of extreme but plausible scenarios on The Bank’s risk pro昀le and 
capital position. Based on the approved stress testing framework, The Bank conducts stress 
tests on its various portfolios and assesses the impact on its capital ratios and the adequacy 
of capital buffers for current and future periods. The Bank periodically assesses and re昀nes 
its stress tests in an effort to ensure that the stress scenarios capture material risks as well as 
re昀ect possible extreme Market moves that could arise as a result of Market conditions.

 Monitoring and reporting
 The Management maintains an active oversight over the Bank’s capital adequacy levels. On 

a quarterly basis the capital adequacy position and the risk weighted assets as stipulated by 
RBI, are reported to the ALCO and MTCo.

 b. Capital requirements for various risk areas
 As required by RBI guidelines on Basel III, the Bank’s capital requirements as at 31 March 

2023 have been computed using the Standardised Approach for credit risk, Standardised 
Duration method for Market risk and Basic Indicator Approach for operational risk. The 
minimum total capital required to be held is 12.5% for credit, Market and operational risks. 
The actual position of various components of capital is given below:

DF-3: Capital Adequacy (Rs. In crore)
Particulars 31 March 

2023
A Capital requirements for Credit Risk 25

Portfolios subject to standardised approach 25
Securitisation exposures

B Capital requirements for Market Risk 27
Standardised duration approach
Interest rate risk –
Foreign exchange risk 27
Equity risk –

C Capital requirements for Operational risk
Basic indicator approach 21

D Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank (%) 348.15%
E CET 1 capital ratio plus capital conservation buffer (%) 347.71%
F Tier II capital ratio (%) 0.44%

 Risk Management Framework:
 As a 昀nancial intermediary, a Bank is exposed to various types of risks including credit, 

Market, liquidity, operational, legal, compliance and reputation risks. The objective of the risk 
management framework at the Bank is to identify measure, control and monitor as well as 
manage and report risks in a clear manner and that the policies and procedures established 
to address these risks are strictly adhered to.

 The important aspects of the Bank’s risk management are a robust risk approval mechanism, 
well de昀ned processes and guidelines and an independent internal control mechanism. The risk 
approval mechanism covers all the key areas of risk such as credit, Market and operational risk 
and is involved in quanti昀cation of these risks wherever possible for effective and continuous 
monitoring.

 Measurement of risks for capital adequacy purposes
 Under Pillar 1 of the extant RBI guidelines on Basel III, the Bank currently follows the 

Standardised approach for Credit Risk and Standardised Duration approach for Market Risk 
and Basic Indicator approach for Operational Risk.

 Objectives and Policies
 The Bank’s risk management processes are guided by well de昀ned global as well as local 

policies appropriate for various risk categories. There is an independent risk team that oversees 
this function

 The risk appetite for the Bank in India is determined by the global risk committees based on 
inputs from the country management.

 In addition to the risk management and compliance departments of the Bank, in India, the India 
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) and Governance and Control Committee (GCC) are 
involved in managing these risks within the Bank’s guidelines and regulatory requirements.

 The Group has global policies for Stress Testing to measure impact of adverse stress scenarios 
on the adequacy of capital .

 Structure and Organisation
 The Bank, has well established processes for management of all material risks faced by and 

has a robust risk governance framework comprising of risk committees at the global & India 
level.

 The key components within the Bank’s risk management framework include:
l Identi昀cation of all material risks that are relevant to the Bank covering all the current 

activities of the Bank
l De昀nition of relevant policies de昀ned by the Head Of昀ce customised as required to suit 

local RBI regulations
l Measurement of its key material risks and performs stress testing to assess its position 

and response strategy in a stress scenario
l Having a robust control environment to monitor whether the various policies and limits are 

being adequately implemented
l Monitoring & reporting to the senior management on various material risks

 The Bank’s risk management framework is embedded in the business through the three lines of 
defence model supported by an appropriate level of investment in information technology and 
its people. The three lines of defence include the Business, Risk management department and 
Group Internal Audit. The Three Lines of Defence Policy Standard de昀nes responsibilities and 
accountabilities of each unit. The three lines of defence are completely independent of each 
other. Business is independent of Risk which is independent from Group Internal Audit. The 
country Governance and Control Committee (GCC) and the ALCO are an important aspect of 
the risk management framework for the Bank.

 The Cross Divisional GCC is the apex In-Country Risk Governance body established by the 
Country Executive to manage and oversee the country’s aggregate risk exposure and to facilitate 
consolidated risk management for the NWM group franchise in India. The GCC meets monthly 
and the senior management of the Bank including heads of all the businesses, operations, 
support functions and risk functions, participate in the meeting. Cross divisional risk issues are 
tabled and taken to a resolution under the ambit of the country GCC.

 Country ALCO is responsible for managing balance sheet risks within its scope and ensuring 
all related local regulatory requirements are met on a continual basis. The ALCO is a forum 
for discussion and making decisions on key strategic, 昀nancial, risk, control, operational and 
governance matters relating to the country’s balance sheet, capital, liquidity and funding, non-
traded interest rate risk and intra-group limits, subject to policies, limits and targets prescribed 
by NWM NatWest Markets ALCO.

 The Bank has constituted the following senior management level committees from the 
perspective of risk governance at the India and Group level:

India Level
Committee Responsibilities
Executive 
Committee 
(MTco)

The India Management Committee (MTCo) is the highest level, in-country decision-
making forum that serves as the board Board for the Bank; to oversee and control 
execution of strategy of NWM in India. The MTCO MTCo meets monthly and is 
responsible for all policy matters and periodic review of the same.
It is chaired by the Country Executive (CEO) and its members include Head - 
Client Of昀ce, Head - Sales & Trading, Head - Retail Banking, Chief Administrative 
Of昀cer (CAO), Chief Governance Of昀cer (CGO), Chief Financial Of昀cer (CFO), 
Chief Risk Of昀cer (CRO), Head - Operations & Off Boarding, Head of Technology/ 
CIO, Head - Conduct & Regulatory Affairs (C&RA), Head - HR and Head - Legal.

Country GCC The India Cross Divisional GCC is the apex in-country Governance & Controls 
body established by the Country Executive Committee (MTCo) to manage and 
oversee the country’s aggregate risk exposure and to facilitate consolidated 
risk management for NWM locally. It is chaired by Country Executive with India 
Chief Risk Of昀cer acting as the convener. Members of the GCC comprises of 
Divisional/Business Heads of Client Of昀ce, Trading, Retail, and support function 
(including risk).

Asset Liability 
Committee 
(ALCo)

India Asset Liability Committee (ALCo) is responsible for ensuring that all Balance 
Sheet related regulatory requirements outlined in ALCo Terms of reference as 
within its scope, are met on a continual basis. The ALCo is a forum for discussion 
and making decisions on key strategic, 昀nancial, risk, control, operational and 
governance matters relating to the country’s balance sheet, capital, liquidity and 
funding, non-traded interest rate risk and intra-group limits, subject to policies, 
limits and targets prescribed by the NWM/NWM Group ALCo.
The members of the ALCO include the Country Executive (CEO), Chief Financial 
Of昀cer (CFO), Chief Risk Of昀cer (CRO), Chief Administrative Of昀cer (CAO), Head 
- Client Of昀ce, Head - Sales & Trading, Head of Retail, and Country Treasury 
Manager.
Regional Treasurer has a permanent/standing invitation to attend the Country 
ALCo. A representative of Internal Audit has a right of attendance at the Country 
ALCo meetings.

Audit 
Committee 
(IAC)

The India Bank Audit Committee (IAC) is established to manage and oversee 
the audit approach for the India Bank (NWM plc India branches). The standing 
agenda items for the quarterly IAC meetings include IA providing status on the audit 
reports issued, audits in progress and audits in plan with an up to date status on 
remediation status of the issues raised and summary of concurrent audit reports 
issued by Concurrent Auditors. The IAC is chaired by the Country Executive 
(CEO) and meets quarterly. The members include Head-Sales and Trading, Head 
- Retail Banking, Chief Financial Of昀cer (CFO), Chief Risk Of昀cer (CRO), Head 
– Compliance, Head – Human Resources, Country Head of Operations, Head 
–Technology, Head-Legal and Chief Administrative Of昀cer (CAO), Head - Client 
Of昀ce, Head of Audit. The Chief of Internal Vigilance (CIV) is invited to present 
the Frauds Identi昀cation, Classi昀cation & Reporting for the quarter.

Customer 
Service 
Committee 
(CSC)

The Customer Service Committee (CSC) reviews and comments on activities to 
bring about ongoing improvements in the quality of customer service provided by 
the Bank. This committee presently meets half-yearly and examines any issue 
having a bearing on the quality of customer service rendered. The agenda of 
the meeting includes update on agreed actionable of the last meeting, update 
on branch level customer service committee meeting, Complaint trends and 
Analysis, analysis of key categories of all client complaints to the committee 
members, update on implementation of all regulatory circulars related to customer 
service, update on service initiatives, if any.
It is chaired by the Country Executive (CEO) and its members include Head - 
Customer Service, Principal Nodal Of昀cer, representatives from all other Business 
Units, as well as representation from Compliance.

Corporate 
Social 
Responsibility 
Committee 
(CSR)

CSR Committee is setup to review, assess and formulate the Corporate Social 
responsibility needs and mandates of the India Bank, in alignment with CSR Bill 
and NWM Group 'Supporting Our Community' strategy. This committee meets 
quarterly and is responsible for providing recommendations to the Bank MTCo, 
with respect to the CSR activities and expenditures.
The Committee is presently chaired by the Bank CAO and consists of at least 2 
employees of NWM plc., of which one person shall be as speci昀ed under clause 
(d) of sub-section (1) of section 380 of the Act (resident in India authorized to 
accept on behalf of the NWM plc service of process and any notices or other 
documents required to be served on the company) and any another member, as 
nominated by the Bank.

Outsourcing 
Committee 
(OSC)

Outsourcing Committee (OSC) is the In-Country level forum to discuss and 
oversee any 昀nancial outsourcing by the Bank. This forum also serves as the 
Local Advisory on outsourcing. The OSC meets quarterly and prescribes the 
controls and processes required to meet NWM Group Policy Standard and RBI 
guidelines along with periodic review of the same. It is chaired by the Head – Retail 
Bank of the Bank and its members include the Chief Risk Of昀cer (CRO), Head 
of Operations-India, Head of Ops Risk & Control, Head of Compliance, Chief 
Governance Of昀cer (CGO), with permanent/standing invitations to representatives 
from HR, Finance, Technology & PMO.

India 
Information 
Security 
Steering 
Committee 
(ISSC)

The India ISSC is the apex in-country Governance & Controls body established 
by the Country Executive Committee (MTCo), to devise strategies and policies 
for protection of all assets of NWM plc –India branch (Including information, 
applications, infrastructure and people).
The ISSC convenes quarterly and is chaired by the Country Executive (CEO), 
with its members including, Head - Client Of昀ce, Head - Sales & Trading, Head 
- Retail Banking, Chief Information Security Of昀cer (CISO), Chief Administrative 
Of昀cer (CAO), Chief Governance Of昀cer (CGO), Chief Financial Of昀cer (CFO), 
Chief Risk Of昀cer (CRO), Head - Operations & Off Boarding, Head of Technology/ 
CIO, Head - Conduct & Regulatory Affairs (C&RA), Head - HR and Head - Legal.

IT Steering 
Committee 
(ITSC)

The IT Steering Committee (ITSC) – India Bank is the governance forum operating 
at an executive level and focusing on priority setting, resource allocation and 
project tracking for all Technology related services for India Bank, viz. IT Project 
Management, Application Support, Application Development, Telecom and 
Networks, Data Centre Operations, Application Server Hosting & Infrastructure 
Services, End User Computing, Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity 
Planning, etc
The ITSC convenes quarterly and is chaired by the Head of Technology/ CIO, with 
its members including, Country Executive (CEO), Head - Client Of昀ce, Head - Sales 
& Trading, Head - Retail Banking, Chief Information Security Of昀cer (CISO), Chief 
Administrative Of昀cer (CAO), Chief Governance Of昀cer (CGO), Chief Financial 
Of昀cer (CFO), Chief Risk Of昀cer (CRO), Head - Operations & Off Boarding, Head 
- Conduct & Regulatory Affairs (C&RA), Head - HR, Head – Legal, Head - Internal 
Audit, PMO and Head - IT (APAC).

Business 
Continuity
Committee

The India Business Continuity Committee is setup to meet quarterly and its primary 
objective is to Steer Bank Business Continuity program. This committee review 
and drive Business Continuity plan maintenance and testing, promote awareness, 
review recovery strategies for critical business processes on a periodic basis in 
line with RBI Guidelines and Bank policy requirements. It is chaired by the Head 
– Business Resilience and its members include the Country Executive, CAO/
COO, CIO, Chief Risk Of昀cer, Head Operations, Head Markets, Head Human 
Resources, Head Legal and Head Compliance.

Group Level
Committee Responsibilities
Group Board The Group Board is the Board of Directors of NatWest Markets group plc. It 

meets periodically with ad hoc meetings convened when necessary. The Group 
Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of the Group and the 
delivery of sustainable value to shareholders. Its role is to provide leadership of 
the Group within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risk 
to be assessed and managed. It sets the strategic aims of the Group, ensures 
that the necessary resources are in place for the Group to meet its obligations, 
is responsible for the allocation and raising of capital and reviews business and 
昀nancial performance. The Group Board sets the Group’s values and standards 
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and others are understood 
and met. The Group Board reviews and approves the risk appetite framework 
and risk appetite targets for the Group’s strategic risk objectives. It reviews, and 
as an appropriate, approves the results of, and actions arising from, Prudential 
Regulatory Authority and other enterprise-wide regulatory stress tests or other 
regulatory tests or investigations. The Group Board also considers longer-term 
strategic threats to the Group’s business operations.

Group Audit 
Committee

The GAC’s primary responsibilities, as set out in its terms of reference, are to 
assist the Group and Bank Boards in discharging their responsibilities in respect 
of: 昀nancial reporting, accounting policy of internal controls; processes for Internal 
and External Audit and oversight of the Group’s relationship with its regulators. GAC 
meets at least six times a year, and as required, and operates under delegated 
authority from the Group and Bank Boards.

Board Risk 
Committee

The BRC is responsible for providing oversight and advice to the Group and Bank 
Boards in relation to current and potential future risk exposures of the Group 
and future risk strategy, including risk appetite and tolerance. BRC will review 
the performance of the Group relative to risk appetite, provide oversight of the 
effectiveness of key Group-wide policies and provide risk input to remuneration 
decisions. BRC has responsibility for promoting a risk awareness within the Group. 
The Committee meets at least eight times per annum and on an ad hoc basis 
as required. BRC operates under delegated authority from the Group and Bank 
Boards and the Committee will report and make recommendations to the Group 
and Bank Boards as required.

Group 
Performance 
and 
Remuneration 
Committee

The RemCo has oversight of the Group’s policy on remuneration. It reviews 
performance and makes recommendations to the Group Board on remuneration 
of executive directors. RemCo is also responsible for approving remuneration 
and severance arrangements for the Group’s Executive Committee and High 
Earners, oversees arrangements for employees identi昀ed as material risk takers 
falling within the scope of the UK remuneration regulations. RemCo consults and 
receives advice from management and other Board Committees as appropriate 
in the implementation of the Remuneration Policy. RemCo meets at least six 
times a year, and as required, and operates under delegated authority from the 
Group and Bank Boards.

Committee Responsibilities
Group 
Nominations 
and 
Governance 
Committee

The N&GC assists the Group and Bank Boards in the selection and appointment 
of directors to the Group and Bank Boards and the consideration and approval 
of appointments to the boards of directors of the Group’s principal and material 
regulated subsidiaries. It reviews the structure, size and composition of the Group 
and Bank Boards, and membership and chairmanship of Board committees and 
oversees the induction, training and continuous professional development of 
directors. N&GC also has responsibility for monitoring the Group’s governance 
arrangements in order to ensure best corporate governance standards and 
practices are upheld. In addition, N&GC will consider developments relating 
to banking reform and analogous issues affecting the Group in the Markets 
where it operates, and will make recommendations to the Group Board on any 
consequential changes to the Group’s governance model. N&GC meets at least 
four times a year, and as required, and operates under delegated authority from 
the Group and Bank Boards.

Sustainable 
Banking 
Committee

The SBC supports the Board in overseeing, supporting and challenging actions 
being taken by management to run the bank as a sustainable business, capable 
of generating long term value for its stakeholders. The Committee will have 
speci昀c focus on culture, people, customer, brand, communications and ESE 
(environmental, social and ethical) issues. SBC meets at least six times a year 
in addition to regular stakeholder engagement sessions, and operates under 
delegated authority from the Group and Bank Boards

Executive 
Committee

The ExCo is responsible for managing strategic, 昀nancial, capital, risk and 
operational issues affecting the Group. It reviews and debates relevant items 
before they are submitted to the Group Board and relevant board committees. 
ExCo has authority to consider and approve the opening of overseas branches 
and any related requirements. ExCo also has authority to assess and approve 
acquisitions and disposals in accordance with the delegated authority and 
expenditure limits set out. Material customer issues and executive succession 
planning are also considered by ExCo. ExCo meets atleast eleven times a year 
and as required. The ExCo operates under delegated authority from the Group 
Board and, as appropriate, the Bank Boards.

In addition to the above, there is Technology and Innovation Committee at the Group level.
4. Credit Risk
 The Bank is exposed to credit risk in its lending operations. Credit risk is the risk of loss that 

may occur from the failure of any counterparty to abide by the terms and conditions of any 
昀nancial contract with the Bank principally the failure to make required payments as per the 
terms and conditions of the contracts.

 Credit Risk Management Policy
 Credit risk considers the ability of a borrower or counter-party to honor commitments under an 

agreement as any such failure has an adverse impact on the Bank 昀nancial performance. The 
Bank’s credit risk management process is independent of the business so as to protect integrity 
of the risk assessment process and decision making. The global as well as local policies guide 
the credit risk team to make informed decisions.

 Credit rating tools are an integral part of risk-assessment
 The credit rating tools use a combination of quantitative inputs and qualitative inputs to arrive 

at a ‘point-in-time’ view of the rating of counterparty. Each internal rating grade corresponds to 
a distinct probability of default. Model validation is carried out periodically at a global level by 
objectively assessing the accuracy and stability of ratings.

 All credit exposures, once approved, are monitored and reviewed periodically against the 
approved limits.

 The exposures to individual clients or counterparty group are based on the internal rating of 
the borrower as well as group-wide borrowing limits and capped by the regulatory ceiling.

 In line with the exit strategy of the bank, there are no funded exposures outstanding as of 
31March 2023. The existing credit portfolio is being wound down with very limited residual non 
funded exposures as on 31 March 2023, which has been provided for.

 De昀nition and classi昀cation of non-performing assets (NPAs)
 RBI guidelines are adhered to while classifying advances into performing and non-performing 

advances (NPAs) as per RBI guidelines. NPAs are further classi昀ed into sub-standard, 
doubtful  and loss assets based on the criteria stipulated by RBI.

 Additionally, RBI guidelines on Resolution of Stressed Assets - Revised Framework is also 
adhered to for classi昀cation, reporting and implementation of resolution for stressed assets.

 Restructured assets
 The Bank ensures that prudential guidelines in respect of income recognition, asset classi昀cation 

& provisioning (including restructuring of advances) as speci昀ed by the RBI from time to time 
are adhered to at all times.

DF – 4: Credit Risk Exposures
Total Gross Credit Risk Exposure Including Geographic Distribution of Exposure

(Rs. In crore)
31 March 2023

Domestic Overseas Total
Fund Based 1,993 - 1,993
Non Fund Based - - -
Total 1,993 - 1,993

Industry distribution of exposures (Rs. In crore)
Industry Classi昀cation 31 March 2023

Funded Non funded
All Engineering - -
Basic Metal and Metal Products - -
Chemicals and Chemical Products (Dyes, Paints, etc.) - -
Food Processing - -
Gems and Jewellery - -
Glass & Glassware - -
Infrastructure - -
Other Industries - -
Paper and Paper Products - -
Residuary Other Advances - -
Rubber, Plastic and their Products - -
Other residuary advances 1,993 -
Total 1,993 -

Residual Contractual/Behavioural Maturities breakdown of Assets as at 31 March 2023
 (Rs. In crores)

Particulars
Deposit Advances Investment Borrowings FCY 

Assets
FCY 

Liabilities
Upto 1 day Nil Nil Nil Nil 31 Nil
2 to 7 days Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
8 to 14 days Nil Nil Nil Nil 7 Nil
15 to 30 days Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
31 days to 2 months Nil Nil 229 384 Nil 385
Over 2 months upto  
3 months

Nil Nil 1,059 Nil Nil Nil

Over 3 months upto  
6 months

Nil Nil 3,079 206 1,827 207

Over 6 months and 
upto 1 year

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Over 1 Year and upto 
3 Years

Nil Nil Nil 1,264 3 1,270

Over 3 Years and upto 
5 Years

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Over 5 Years Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil 4,367 1,854 1,868 1,862

Movement of NPAs and Provision for NPAs (Rs. In crore)
Particulars 31 March 2023

A Amount of NPAs (Gross) -
Substandard -
Doubtful -
Loss -

B Net NPAs -
C NPA Ratios

Gross NPAs to gross advances (%) -
Net NPAs to net advances (%) -

D Movement of NPAs (Gross)
Opening balance -
Additions during the year/on amalgamation -
Reductions during the year/on amalgamation -
Closing balance -

E Movement of Provision for NPAs -
Opening balance -
Provision made during the year/on amalgamation -
(Write – Offs)/Write – Back of excess provision -
Closing balance -

Non Performing Investments (NPIs) and Provision for depreciation on NPIs – NIL
Movement of Speci昀c and General Provisions as on 31 March 2023 (Rs. In crore)
Movement of Provisions Speci昀c Provision General provision
(a) Opening Balance - -
(b) Provisions made during the year - -
(c) Write-off/write-back of excess provisions - -
(d) Adjustments/Transfers between provisions* - -
(e) Closing balance - -
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Details of write o昀’s and recoveries that have been booked directly to the income statement as on 
31 March 2023  (Rs. In crore)
Particulars 31 March 2023
Write offs that have been booked directly to the income statement -
Recoveries that have been booked directly to the income statement -

Major Industries break up of Provision as on 31 March 2023 (Rs. In crore)
Industry Speci昀c Provision General provision
Paper and paper products - -
Other Industries - -
Total - -

Major Industries break up of NPA as on 31 March 2023 (Rs. In crore)
Industry Gross NPA
Paper and paper products -
Total -

Major Industries breakup of speci昀c provision and write-o昀’s for the 昀nancial year 31 March 
2023    (Rs. In crore)
Industry Provision Write-o昀s
Paper and paper products - -

Geography wise distribution of NPA and Provision as on 31 March 2023 (Rs. In crore)
Geography Gross NPA Speci昀c Provision General Provision
Domestic - - -
Overseas - - -
Total - - -

5. Credit Risk: Use of rating Agency under the Standardised approach
 The Bank has not applied external ratings to its funded or non-funded instruments or bank 

facilities’ and has treated them as unrated exposure.
 The Bank has 昀led an application with RBI to close its business and operations with effect from 

close of business on 31 December 2019.
DF – 5: Details of Gross credit risk exposure (Fund based and Non-fund based) based on 
Risk Weight   (Rs. In crore)
Particulars 31 March 2023
Below 100% risk weight 321
100% risk weight 166
More than 100% risk weight -
Deductions
Investments in subsidiaries -

6. Credit Risk Mitigation
 The Bank uses various collaterals both 昀nancial and guarantees as credit risk mitigants. 

The main 昀nancial collaterals include bank deposits. The guarantees include those given by 
Corporate & Bank.The Bank reduces its credit exposure to counterparty with the value of eligible 
昀nancial collateral to take account of the risk mitigating effect of the collateral. To account for 
the volatility in the value of collateral, haircut is applied based on the type, issuer, maturity, 
rating and re-margining/revaluation frequency of the collateral.

 In line with the exit strategy of the bank, there are no funded exposures outstanding as of 
31March 2023. The existing credit portfolio is being wound down with very limited residual non 
funded exposures as on 31 March 2023, which has been provided for.

DF – 6: Detail of total credit exposure position as on 31 March 2023 (Rs. In crore)
Particulars 31 March 2023
Covered by
Financial collaterals -
Guarantees -

7. Securitisation
DF – 7: Securitisation
There were no securitisation transactions entered during the year (Previous year - Nil).
8. Market Risk in Trading Book
 Following the business restructuring in previous years there is no more trading desks in NWM 

Plc India Branch and hence there is no Market risk incurred from trading positions incurred in 
the branch.

 Market risk is the risk to the Bank earnings and capital arising from changes in the Market level 
of interest rates or prices of securities and foreign exchange rates. There is a residual Market 
risk position incurred in the branch from the head of昀ce capital fund and the investment of the 
fund. The Bank adopts a comprehensive approach to Market risk management for these residual 
activities and Market risk is governed by the risk policies of the Branch and NWM Group.

 Market risk of the branch is managed by the Markets function and with the Market Risk 
Management function as the second line of defence. Market risk exposures are reported, 
monitored against limits and analysed daily.

 The main Market risk measures of the Branch are:
	 l Value at Risk (“VaR”)
	 l Sensitivities to Market risk factors (PV01, XCCY Basis etc.)
	 l Open FX positions
 A full description of the Group’s approach to Market risk can be found in the Group’s latest 

Annual Report and Accounts for Market risk disclosure
 Market Risk capital charge is calculated using the non-modelled approach, whereby RBI 

prescribed rules are applied.
DF – 8: Capital Requirement for Market Risk (Rs. In crore)
Particulars Amount of Capital required

31 March 2023
Interest rate risk –
Foreign exchange risk (including gold) 27
Equity position risk –

9. Operational Risk – Three lines of defence model
 1st Line of Defence – Management & Supervision
 NWM the Bank operates three lines of defence model which outlines the principles for the 

roles, responsibilities and accountabilities for operational risk management.
 The 1LOD encompasses most roles in the bank. Including those that directly serve our customers 

or which directly support those that do.
 They originate and own most of the risks in the bank and are responsible for the management 

of these within risk appetite.
 First line responsibilities:

l Development of business and function strategy aligned to, and informed by, 昀nancial 
objectives, customer outcomes and within risk appetite

l Proposing their risk appetite, aligned to group-wide risk appetite where cascaded
l The management of risks in business delivery within risk appetite
l Exercising informed judgement in considering risk in decision making
l Designing, implementing and maintaining effective processes, procedures, controls to 

identify, measure, report and mitigate risks within risk appetite
l Demonstrating the adequacy and effectiveness of controls and remediate where residual 

risk is outside of appetite
l Compliance with the letter and spirit of all legal and regulatory requirements and 

maintenance of records to evidence compliance
 2nd Line of Defence – Oversight & Control
 The 2LOD primarily comprises roles in the Risk Function. They

l Set the standards for the effective management of risk across the bank and undertake 
independent oversight and challenge to ensure these are being managed within risk 
appetite

l Provide expert guidance and direction to the 1LOD in the application of effective risk and 
control frameworks and consideration of risk in decision making

 Second line responsibilities:
 Roles in the Risk Function
 These set the standards for, and the independent oversight of, the effective management of 

risk. Activities can include;
l De昀ning, managing and maintaining risk management frameworks and policies, to inform 

the effective management of risk in the 1LOD
l Facilitate, aggregate and propose group-wide strategic and material risk appetite statements 

to be approved by the Group Board and Executive
l Where delegated approve the group wide, legal entity, franchises and functions’ risk 

appetite and restricted access throughout the Group, providing independent oversight and 
challenge of the implementation of risk management frameworks, policies and controls 
within the 1LOD (including legal entities) to manage risks within appetite and within the 
letter and spirit of all legal and regulatory requirements. This includes
v Providing guidance, insights and direction to support consideration of risk in decision-

making
v Challenging a proposed decision and provide direction where risks have the potential to 

exceed risk appetite, breach policy or where risk appetite and controls are inadequately 
expressed or embedded

v Imposing controls to support the management of risk within risk appetite
v Exercising its right and obligation to veto

 3rd Line of Defence – Internal Audit
 The 3LOD is Internal Audit.
 They provide the Board and senior management with independent assurance on the 

appropriateness of the design and operational effectiveness of governance, risk management 
and internal controls to monitor, manage and mitigate the bank’s material risks.

 Third line responsibilities:
 Internal Audit remit is unrestricted and provides independent assurance on the appropriateness 

of the design and operational effectiveness of governance, risk management and internal 
controls to monitor, manage and mitigate the bank’s material risks.

 Standard accountabilities for all roles across the Three Lines of Defence:
l To provide management with relevant information on risk, including escalating concerns 

where appropriate
l For the management and oversight of risk relating to day-to-day activities, including 

compliance with Our Code, all NWM policies, ‘How we manage NWM’, and if applicable 
‘How we manage our Business’

l To display, and evidence where appropriate, those risk practices and behaviours are 
consistent with a risk culture where “risk is simply part of the way we work and think”

l To work collaboratively across the 3LOD
 With regards to the above framework, it must also be noted that all the three lines of defence 

are completely independent of each other.
 The Operational Risk Handbook provides the direction for delivering an effective operational 

risk management. The objectives is to protect the Group from 昀nancial loss or damage to its 
reputation, its customers or staff and to ensure that it meets all necessary regulatory and legal 
requirements.

 The operational risk management is supported by several key operational risk management 
techniques such as:
1. Risk assessments: business units identify and assess operational risks to ensure that they 

are effectively managed, prioritised, documented and aligned to risk appetite;
2. Risk Event and Loss data management: each business unit’s internal loss data management 

process captures all operational risk loss events above certain minimum thresholds. The 
data is used to enhance the adequacy and effectiveness of controls, identify emerging 
themes, enable formal loss event reporting and inform risk and control assessments and 
scenario analysis.

 Escalation of individual events to senior management is determined by the seriousness 
of the event.

3. Risk Issues Management: This process ensures that operational risk issues are captured 
and classi昀ed consistently, and that there is robust governance over their closure and 
acceptance.

 Reporting forms an integral part of operational risk management. The Group’s risk management 
processes are designed to ensure that issues are identi昀ed, escalated and managed on a 
timely basis. Exposures for each division are reported through monthly risk issue reports, which 
provide detail on the risk issues and action plans.

 Events that have a material, actual or potential impact on The Bank’s 昀nances, reputation or 
customers, are escalated and reported to divisional and Group executive.

 Policies for mitigating risks
 The objective of operational risk management is not to remove operational risk altogether, but to 

manage the risk to an acceptable level, taking into account the cost of minimising the risk with 
the resultant reduction in exposure. Strategies to manage operational risk include avoidance, 
transfer, acceptance and mitigation by controls.

 Each business unit must manage its operational risk exposure within an acceptable level, 
testing the adequacy and effectiveness of controls and other risk mitigants regularly and 
documenting the results. Where unacceptable control weaknesses are identi昀ed, action plans 
must be produced and tracked to completion.

DF – 9: Approach for Operational Risk Capital Assessment
 As per the RBI guidelines on Basel III, The Bank has adopted Basic Indicator approach for 

computing capital charge for operational risk. The capital required for operational risk at 31 
March 2023 was 21 crores.

 Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)
 Risk management framework for Interest Rate Risk in the Banking book (IRRBB) also referred 

as Non-Trading interest Rate Risk (NTIRR) covers the interest rate risk outside the interest 
rate trading business.

 The branch holds interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities on its Balance sheet. IRRBB or 
NTIRR arises where there is potential for changes in benchmark interest rates to result in a 
movement in bank’s future income.

 Governance framework
 India ALCO is responsible for evolving appropriate systems and procedures for identi昀cation and 

analysis of various balance sheet risks including IRRBB or NTIRR and laying down parameters 
for ef昀cient management of these risks. India ALCO comprises of senior management of The 
Bank and meets periodically. The ALCO focuses on setting interest rate risk appetite by setting 
limits on relevant indicators, which positively contributes to optimising the balance sheet structure 
and Net Interest Income (NII) over time, while limiting the susceptibility to interest changes. 
ALCO periodically monitors risk positions of the branch, ensures compliance with regulatory 
requirements and internal limits and provides strategic guidance for management of the IRRBB 
or NTIRR.

 Measurement
 The branch uses the following tools for managing interest rate risk:

l Gap analysis: The interest rate gap or mismatch risk is measured by calculating gaps 
over different time intervals as at a given date. This static analysis measure mismatches 
between rate sensitive liabilities (RSL) and rate sensitive assets (RSA). The report is 
prepared monthly by grouping rate sensitive assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet 
positions into time buckets according to their residual/behavioural maturities or next re-
pricing periods. The difference between RSA and RSL for each time bucket signi昀es the 
gap in that time bucket. The direction of the gap indicates whether net interest income is 
positively or negatively impacted by a change in interest rates and the magnitude of the 
gap helps in 昀nding out the change in net interest income for any given interest rate shift

l Earnings at risk (EaR): The interest rate gap report mentioned above indicates whether 
the branch is in a position to bene昀t from rising interest rates by having a positive gap 
(RSA > RSL) or whether it is in a position to bene昀t from declining interest rates by having 
a negative gap (RSL>RSA). EaR measures the change in NII over a one year time horizon 
for various levels of parallel shift in interest rates

l Economic value: Change in the interest rates have a long-term impact on the capital 
position of the branch, as the economic value of the Branch’s assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet positions get affected by these rate changes. The branch applies modi昀ed 
duration approach and monitors impact of various levels of parallel shift in interest rate 
curves on the capital position

l PV01: PV01 measures the impact on economic value of a 1 basis point (0.01%) change 
in interest rates. The branch also uses PV01 limits to manage IRRBB or NTIRR

 Details of increase in earnings and economic value for upward and downward rate shocks, 
assuming parallel shift in the interest rate curves (basis points), based on the local currency 
positions are given below:

Economic value perspective (Rs. In crore)
31 March 2023

-200 200
INR (50) 50
USD - -
GBP - -
EUR - -
JPY - -
RES - -
Total (50) 50

Earnings perspective (Rs. In crore)
31 March 2023

-200 200
INR 13 (13)
USD – –
GBP – –
EUR – –
JPY – –
RES – –
Total 13 (13)

General Disclosure for Exposures Related to Counterparty Credit
Risk
Methodology used to assign economic capital and credit limits for counterparty credit 
exposures
Counterparty credit risk is covered by the Group’s credit risk framework and there are policies which 
apply to OTC derivatives and repo products addressing documentation requirements, product-
speci昀c requirements, counterparty speci昀c requirements, issuer risk, Margin trading, collateral etc.
Counterparty exposure is calculated per each Counterparty based on The Bank approved exposure 
calculation methodology. The exposure takes into account of Mark-to-Market and potential future 
exposure of each trade, as well as Bank’s netting/collateral opinion to the governing master 
agreement. Where there is a collateral agreement with clear collateral opinion in place, collateral 
held/posted is also used in the exposure calculation.
Policies for securing collateral and establishing credit reserves
The group credit policy framework governs counterparty credit risk management requirements 
where legal and administrative capacity of counterparties to enter into collateral agreement is 
assessed. The policy framework establishes minimum documentation requirements under collateral 
agreements including thresholds, minimum transfer amounts, haircuts, collateral eligibility criteria 
and collateral call frequency. Where netting and/or collateral enforceability criteria are not ful昀lled, 
exposure is assumed to be un-collateralised.
Policies with respect to Wrong-way risk (WWR) exposures
Wrong-way risk exposures are also governed by the group policy framework. WWR arises when the 
risk factors driving the exposure to counterparty are adversely correlated with the creditworthiness 
of that counterparty, i.e. the size of the exposure increases at the same time as the riskiness of 
the counterparty increases. Bank recognises two different types of WWR – Speci昀c WWR and 
General WWR.
Speci昀c WWR arises when the exposure on transactions is by virtue of economic dependence 
or ownership i.e. ‘self-referenced’, to the counterparty. General WWR is further classi昀ed as (a) 
Currency Risk and (b) Correlation Risk. Currency risk arises when counterparty is correlated with a 
macroeconomic factor which also affects the exposure. Correlation Risk arises when the exposure 
on the transaction is correlated with the counterparty’s creditworthiness for a reason that is speci昀c 
to the counterparty. Bank monitors and manages the wrong-way risk in accordance with the group 
wide policy framework.
Collateral required in the event of a credit rating downgrade
The Group calculates the additional collateral it would be required to post in the event of its credit 
ratings being downgraded by one or two notches. The Bank follows the group-wide policy framework 
on collateral requirement in the event of credit rating downgrade.
The Bank has not entered into any Derivative transaction during the year.

Composition of Capital
Sr. 
No.

Particular Amount 
(Rs. In millions)

Ref No.

1 Directly issued qualifying common share capital plus related stock 
surplus (share premium)1

28,028 a

2 Retained earnings (3,433) b+c+d+i
3 Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves) –
4 Directly issued capital subject to phase out from CET1 

(only applicable to non–joint stock companies1)
–

Public sector capital injections grandfathered until 1 January 2019 –
5 Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by third 

parties (amount allowed in group CET1)
–

6 Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 24,596
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

7 Prudential valuation adjustments –
8 Goodwill (net of related tax liability) –
9 Intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights 

(net of related tax liability)
–

10 Deferred tax assets – e
11 Cash-昀ow hedge reserve –
12 Shortfall of provisions to expected losses –
13 Securitisation gain on sale –
14 Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued 

liabilities
–

15 De昀ned-bene昀t pension fund net assets –
16 Investments in own shares 

(if not already netted off paid-in capital on reported balance sheet)
–

17 Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity –
18 Investments in the capital of banking, 昀nancial and insurance 

entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, 
net of eligible short positions, where The Bank

–

Does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital(amount 
above 10% threshold)

–

19 Signi昀cant investments in the common stock of banking, 昀nancial 
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory 
consolidation, net of eligible short positions(amount above 10% 
threshold)

–

20 Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold) –
21 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences 5 

(amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
–

22 Amount exceeding the 15% threshold6 –
23 of which: signi昀cant investments in the common stock of 昀nancial 

entities
–

24 of which: mortgage servicing rights –
25 of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences –
26 National speci昀c regulatory adjustments7 (26a+26b+26c+26d) –
26a of which: Investments in the equity capital of the unconsolidated 

insurance subsidiaries
–

26b of which: Investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated 
on-昀nancial subsidiaries8

–

26c of which: Shortfall in the equity capital of majority owned 昀nancial 
entities which have not been consolidated with the bank

–

26d of which: Unamortised pension funds expenditures –
27 Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due 

to insuf昀cient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions
–

28 Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1 –
29 Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 24,596

Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments
30 Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus related 

stock surplus (31+32)
–

31 Of which: Classi昀ed as equity under applicable accounting 
standards (Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares)

–

32 Of which: Classi昀ed as liabilities under applicable accounting 
standards (Perpetual debt Instruments)

–

33 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from 
Additional Tier 1

– f

34 Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments not included 
in row 5) issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount 
allowed in group AT1)

–

35 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out –
36 Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments –

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
37 Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments –
38 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments –
39 Investments in the capital of banking, 昀nancial and insurance 

entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, 
net of eligible short positions, where The Bank does not own 
more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity 
(amount above 10% threshold)

–

40 Signi昀cant investments in the capital of banking, 昀nancial and 
insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory 
consolidation (net of eligible short positions)10

–

41 National speci昀c regulatory adjustments (41a+41b) –
41a Investments in the Additional Tier 1 capital of unconsolidated 

insurance subsidiaries
–

41b Shortfall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of majority owned 昀nancial 
entities which have not been consolidated with The Bank

– e

42 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to 
insuf昀cient Tier 2 to cover deductions

–

43 Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital –
44 Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1) –
44a Additional Tier 1 capital reckoned for capital adequacy11 –
45 Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) (29 + 44a) 24,596

Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
46 Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related stock 

surplus
–

47 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Tier 2 – e
48 Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments not included 

in rows 5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties 
(amount allowed in group Tier 2)

–

49 Of which: Instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out –
50 Provisions 31 g+h
51 Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 31

Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments
52 Investments in own Tier 2 instruments –
53 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments –
54 Investments in the capital of banking, 昀nancial and insurance 

entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, 
net of eligible short positions, where The Bank does not own 
more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity 
(amount above the 10% threshold)

–

55 Signi昀cant investments13 in the capital banking, 昀nancial and 
insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory 
consolidation (net of eligible short positions)

–

56 National speci昀c regulatory adjustments (56a+56b) –
56a Of which: Investments in the Tier 2 capital of unconsolidated 

subsidiaries
–

56b Of which: Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of majority owned 昀nancial 
entities which have not been consolidated with The Bank

–

57 Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital –
58 Tier 2 capital (T2) 31
58a Tier 2 capital reckoned for capital adequacy14 31
58b Excess Additional Tier 1 capital reckoned as Tier 2 capital –
58c Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy (58a + 58b) 31
59 Total capital (TC = T1 + T2) (45 + 58c) 24,627
60 Total risk weighted assets (60a + 60b + 60c) 7,074
60a Of which: total credit risk weighted assets 2,011
60b Of which: total Market risk weighted assets 3,375
60c Of which: total operational risk weighted assets 1,668

Capital ratios
61 Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 347.71%
62 Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 347.71%
63 Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 348.15%
64 Institution speci昀c buffer requirement (minimum CET1requirement 

plus capital conservation and countercyclical buffer requirements, 
expressed as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

–

65 Of which: capital conservation buffer requirement –
66 Of which: bank speci昀c countercyclical buffer requirement –
67 Of which: G-SIB buffer requirement –
68 Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers 

(as a percentage of risk weighted assets)
338.71%
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Sr. 
No.

Particular Amount 
(Rs. In millions)

Ref No.

National minima (if different from Basel III)
69 National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio 

(if different from Basel III minimum)
5.50%

70 National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel III minimum) 7.00%
71 National total capital minimum ratio 

(if different from Basel III minimum)
12.50%

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
72 Non-signi昀cant investments in the capital of other 昀nancial entities –
73 Signi昀cant investments in the common stock of 昀nancial entities –
74 Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability) –
75 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences 

(net of related tax liability)
–

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2
76 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures 

subject to standardised approach (prior to application of cap)
31

77 Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised 
approach

25

78 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures 
subject to internal ratings-based approach 
(prior to application of cap)

NA

79 Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-
based approach

NA

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements 
(only applicable between June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2022)

80 Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out 
arrangements

NA

81 Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap 
(excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)

NA

82 Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements NA
83 Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap 

(excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)
NA

84 Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out arrangements NA
85 Amount excluded from T2 due to cap 

(excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)
NA

NA – Not Applicable
Notes to the Template

Particular (Rs. In 
million)

10 Deferred tax assets associated with accumulated losses –
Deferred tax assets (excluding those associated with accumulated losses) net of 
Deferred tax liability *

–

19 If investments in insurance subsidiaries are not deducted fully from capital and 
instead considered under 10% threshold for deduction, the resultant increase in 
the capital of bank

NA

of which: Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital NA
of which: Increase in Additional Tier 1 capital NA
of which: Increase in Tier 2 capital NA

26b If investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-昀nancial subsidiaries 
are not deducted and hence, risk weighted then:

NA

(i) Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital NA
(ii) Increase in risk weighted assets NA

44a Excess Additional Tier 1 capital not reckoned for capital adequacy (difference 
between Additional Tier 1 capital as reported in row 44 and admissible Additional 
Tier 1 capital as reported in 44a)

–

of which: Excess Additional Tier 1 capital which is considered as Tier 2 capital 
under row 58b

–

50 Eligible Provisions included in Tier 2 capital 31
Eligible Revaluation Reserves included in Tier 2 capital –

58a Excess Tier 2 capital not reckoned for capital adequacy (difference between Tier 
2 capital as reported in row 58 and T2 as reported in 58a)

–

Composition of Capital – Reconciliation Requirements
Particulars Balance sheet as in 

昀nancial statements 
As on 31 March 

2023 
(Rs. In Millions)

Reference 
No.

A Capital & Liabilities
i Paid-up Capital 28,028 a

Reserves & Surplus (3,426)
Of which:
Statutory Reserves 301 b
Capital Reserves 14 c
Other Revenue reserves (2,928) d
Investment 昀uctuation Reserve 6 g
Balance in Pro昀t/Loss account (820) i
Minority Interest –
Total Capital 24,602

ii Deposits –
Of which: Deposits from banks –
Of which: Customer deposits –
Of which: Other deposits (pl. specify) –

iii Borrowings 18,540
I. Borrowings in India
Of which: From RBI –
Of which: From banks –
Of which: From other institutions & agencies –
Of which: Others (pl. specify) –
II. Borrowings outside India 18,540
Of which: Capital instruments – f

iv Other liabilities & provisions 5,389
Of which: Provision for Standard Advances 47 h
Total 48,530

B Assets
i Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 1,222

Balance with banks and money at call and short notice 1,304
ii Investments: 43,665

Of which: Government securities 43,665
Of which: Other approved securities –
Of which: Shares –
Of which: Debentures & Bonds –
Of which: Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/Associates
Of which: Others (Commercial Papers, Mutual Funds 
etc.)

–

iii Loans and advances –
Of which: Loans and advances to banks –
Of which: Loans and advances to customers –

iv Fixed assets –
v Other assets 2,339

Of which: Goodwill and intangible assets –
Of which: Deferred tax assets – e

vi Goodwill on consolidation –
vii Debit balance in Pro昀t & Loss account –

Total Assets 48,530

Main Features Template
1 Issuer NA
2 Unique identi昀er (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg identi昀er for private placement) NA
3 Governing law(s) of the instrument

Regulatory treatment
4 Transitional Basel III rules NA
5 Post-transitional Basel III rules NA
6 Eligible at solo/group/group & solo NA
7 Instrument type NA
8 Amount recognised in regulatory capital 

(Rs. in million, as of most recent reporting date)
NA

9 Par value of instrument NA
10 Accounting classi昀cation NA
11 Original date of issuance NA

12 Perpetual or dated NA
13 Original maturity date NA
14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval NA
15 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount NA
16 Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA

Coupons/dividends NA
17 Fixed or 昀oating dividend/coupon NA
18 Coupon rate and any related index NA
19 Existence of a dividend stopper NA
20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory NA
21 Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem NA
22 Noncumulative or cumulative NA
23 Convertible or non-convertible NA
24 If convertible, conversion trigger(s) NA
25 If convertible, fully or partially NA
26 If convertible, conversion rate NA
27 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion NA
28 If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into NA
29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into NA
30 Write-down feature NA
31 If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA
32 If write-down, full or partial NA
33 If write-down, permanent or temporary NA
34 If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism NA
35 Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation 

(specify instrument type immediately senior to instrument)
NA

36 Non-compliant transitioned features NA
37 If yes, specify non-compliant features NA

1 Issuer NA NA
2 Unique identi昀er 

(e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg identi昀er for private placement)
NA NA

3 Governing law(s) of the instrument
Regulatory treatment

4 Transitional Basel III rules NA NA
5 Post-transitional Basel III rules NA NA
6 Eligible at solo/group/group & solo NA NA
7 Instrument type NA NA
8 Amount recognised in regulatory capital 

(Rs. in million, as of most recent reporting date)
NA NA

9 Par value of instrument NA NA
10 Accounting classi昀cation NA NA
11 Original date of issuance NA NA
12 Perpetual or dated NA NA
13 Original maturity date NA NA
14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval NA NA
15 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount NA NA
16 Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA NA

Coupons/dividends NA NA
17 Fixed or 昀oating dividend/coupon NA NA
18 Coupon rate and any related index NA NA
19 Existence of a dividend stopper NA NA
20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory NA NA
21 Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem NA NA
22 Noncumulative or cumulative NA NA
23 Convertible or non-convertible NA NA
24 If convertible, conversion trigger(s) NA NA
25 If convertible, fully or partially NA NA
26 If convertible, conversion rate NA NA
27 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion NA NA
28 If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into NA NA
29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into NA NA
30 Write-down feature NA NA
31 If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA NA
32 If write-down, full or partial NA NA
33 If write-down, permanent or temporary NA NA
34 If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism NA NA
35 Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation 

(specify instrument type immediately senior to instrument)
NA NA

36 Non-compliant transitioned features NA NA
37 If yes, specify non-compliant features NA NA

Leverage Ratio
The Leverage ratio has been calculated using the de昀nitions of capital and total exposure. The 
Bank’s leverage ratio, calculated in accordance with the RBI guidelines is as follows:
Leverage Common Disclosure (Rs. In Million)

S. 
No.

Leverage ratio framework As of 
31 Mar 
2023

As of 
31 Dec 
2022

As of 
30 Sep 
2022

As of 
30 Jun 
2022

On Balance Sheet exposures
1 On-balance sheet items (excluding derivatives and 

SFTs, but including collateral)
47,731 48,985 48,459 48,349

2 (Asset amounts deducted in determining Basel III 
Tier 1 capital)

0 0 0 0

3 Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding 
derivatives and SFTs) (sum of lines 1 and 2)

47,731 48,985 48,459 48,349

Derivative Exposures –
4 Replacement cost associated with all derivatives 

transactions 
(i.e. net of eligible cash variation Margin)

–

5 Add-on amounts for PFE associated with all 
derivatives transactions

–

6 Gross-up for derivatives collateral provided where 
deducted from the balance sheet assets pursuant 
to the operative accounting framework

–

7 (Deductions of receivables assets for cash variation 
Margin provided in derivatives transactions)

–

8 (Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared trade 
exposures)

–

9 Adjusted effective notional amount of written credit 
derivatives

–

10 (Adjusted effective notional offsets and add-on 
deductions for written credit derivatives)

–

11 Total derivative exposures (sum of lines 4 to 10)
Securities 昀nancing transaction exposures

12 Gross SFT assets (with no recognition of netting), 
after adjusting for sale accounting transactions

800 - 150 –

13 (Netted amounts of cash payables and cash 
receivables of gross SFT assets)

- - -

14 CCR exposure for SFT assets – – –
15 Agent transaction exposures – – –
16 Total securities 昀nancing transaction exposures 

(sum of lines 12 to 15) Other off-balance sheet 
exposures

800 – 150 –

Other O昀 – balance sheet exposures
17 Off-balance sheet exposure at gross notional 

amount
– – – –

18 (Adjustments for conversion to credit equivalent 
amounts)

– – – –

19 Off-balance sheet items (sum of lines 17 and 18) – – – –
Capital and total exposures

20 Tier 1 capital 24,596 24,702 24,657 24,872
21 Total exposures (sum of lines 3, 11, 16 and 19) 48,530 48,985 48,609 48,349

Leverage ratio 50.68% 50.43% 50.72% 51.44%
22 Basel III leverage ratio 50.68% 50.43% 50.72% 51.44%

Comparison of accounting assets and Leverage ratio exposure (Rs. In Million)
S. 

No.
Particulars As of 

31 Mar 
2023

As of 
31 Dec 
2022

As of 
30 Sep 
2022

As of 
30 Jun 
2022

1 Total consolidated assets as per published 昀nancial 
statements

48,530 48,985 48,609 48,349

2 Adjustment for investments in banking, 昀nancial, 
insurance or commercial entit ies that are 
consolidated for accounting purposes but outside 
the scope of regulatory consolidation

– – – –

3 Adjustment for 昀duciary assets recognised on the 
balance sheet pursuant to the operative accounting 
framework but excluded from the leverage ratio 
exposure measure

– – – –

4 Adjustments for derivative 昀nancial instruments – – – –
5 Adjustment for securities 昀nancing transactions (i.e. 

repos and similar secured lending)
– – – –

6 Adjustment for off-balance sheet items (i.e. 
conversion to credit equivalent amounts of off-
balance sheet exposures)

– – – –

7 Other adjustments – – – –
8 Leverage ratio exposure 48,530 48,985 48,609 48,349

Reconciliation of total published balance sheet size and on balance sheet exposure under 
common disclosure  (Rs. In Million)

S. 
No.

Particulars As of 
31 Mar 
2023

As of 
31 Dec 
2022

As of 
30 Sep 
2022

As of 
30 Jun 
2022

1 Total consolidated assets as per published 昀nancial 
statements

48,530 48,985 48,609 48,349

2 Replacement cost associated with all derivatives 
transactions, i.e. net of eligible cash variation Margin

– – – –

3 Adjustment for securities 昀nancing transactions  
(i.e. repos and similar secured lending)

(800) – (150) –

4 Adjustment for entitles outside the scope of 
regulatory consolidation

– – – –

5 On-balance sheet exposure under leverage ratio 
(excluding derivatives and SFTs)

47,731 48,985 48,459 48,349

Leverage Ratio (Rs. In Million)
As of 

31 Mar 2023
As of 

31 Dec 2022
As of 

30 Sep 2022
As of 

30 Jun 2022
Tier 1 Capital 24,596 24,702 24,657 24,872
Exposure Measure 48,530 48,985 48,609 48,349
Leverage Ratio 50.68% 50.43% 50.72% 51.44%

Disclosure Requirements for Remuneration
In accordance with the requirements of the RBI circular DOR.Appt.BC.No.23/29.67.001/2019-20 
dated 4 November 2019 the Bank has obtained a letter from its Head Of昀ce which states that the 
compensation policies in India including that for the CEO are in line with the Financial Stability 
Board (FSB) requirements.
Liquidity Coverage Ratio
Particulars (Amount in crores)

Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23
Consolidated 

Average 
April to 

March 2023
Average Average Average Average Average
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1 Total High Quality Liquid 
Assets (HQLA)

4,285 4,285 4,355 4,355 4,425 4,425 4,339 4,339 4,351 4,351

Cash Out昀ows
2 Retail deposits and deposits 

from small business customers, 
of which:

(i) Stable deposits
(ii) Less stable deposits
3 Unsecured wholesale funding, 

of which:
(i) Operational deposits 

(all counterparties)
(ii) Non-operational deposits 

(all counterparties)
(iii) Unsecured debt 116 116 469 469 125 125 475 475 296 296
4 Secured wholesale funding
5 Additional requirements, of 

which
(i) Out昀ows related to derivative 

exposures and other collateral 
requirements -

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

(ii) Out昀ows related to loss of 
funding on debt products

(iii) Credit and liquidity facilities - - - - - - - - - -
6 Other contractual funding 

obligations
14 14 27 27 23 23 42 42 27 27

7 Other contingent funding 
obligations

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 Total Cash Out昀ows 133 133 499 499 151 151 520 520 326 326
Cash In昀ows (A)
9 Secured lending 

(e.g. reverse repos)
81 81 51 51 14 14 72 72 55 55

10 In昀ows from fully performing 
exposures

- - - - - - - - - -

11 Other cash in昀ows 23 23 94 94 46 46 71 71 58 58
12 Total Cash In昀ows 104 104 145 145 60 60 143 143 113 113
13 Total HQLA 4,285 4,355 4,425 4,339 4,351
14 Total Net Cash Out昀ows (B) 33 354 91 377 214
15 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 12,921% 1,229% 4,861% 1,150% 2,043%

Based on the above, average LCR (all currency) for the Bank for the year ended 31 March 2023 
is 2,043% against the regu
latory minimum of 100%.The LCR is computed as simple averages of daily observations from 01 
April 2022 to 31 March 2023.
Net Stable Funding Ratio
The quarterly disclosures for the Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) is as given below :

NSFR Disclosure Template 31 March 2023
(` in Crore) Unweighted value by residual 

maturity
Weighted 

value
No 

maturity*
< 6 

months
6 months 
to < 1yr

≥ 1yr

ASF Item
1 Capital: (2+3) 2,460 - - - 2,460
2 Regulatory capital 2,460 - - - 2,460
3 Other capital instruments - - - - -
4 Retail deposits and deposits from 

small business customers: (5+6)
- - - - -

5 Stable deposits - - - - -
6 Less stable deposits - - - - -
7 Wholesale funding: (8+9) - - - - -
8 Operational deposits - - - - -
9 Other wholesale funding - - - - -

10 Other liabilities: (11+12) - 590 - 1,264 -
11 NSFR derivative liabilities - - -
12 All other liabilities and equity not 

included in the above categories
- 590 - 1,264 -

13 Total ASF (1+4+7+10) 2,460
RSF Item
14 Total NSFR high-quality liquid assets 

(HQLA)
226

15 Deposits held at other 昀nancial 
institutions for operational purposes

- - - - -

Performing loans and - - - - -
16 securities: (17+18+19+21+23) - - - - -
17 Performing loans to 昀nancial 

institutions secured by Level 1 HQLA
- - - - -

18 Performing loans to 昀nancial 
institutions by non-Level 1 HQLA 
and unsecured performing loans to 
昀nancial institutions

- - - - -

19 Performing loans to non- 昀nancila 
coporate clients, loans to retail and 
small business customers, and loans 
to sovereigns, central banks, and 
PSEs, of which

- - - - -

20 With a risk weight of less than or 
equal to 35% under the Basel II 
Standardised Approach for credit risk

- - - - -

21 Performing residential mortgages, of 
which:

- - - - -

22 With a risk weight of less than or equal 
to 35% under the Basel II Standardised 
Approach for credit risk

- - - - -

23 Securities that are not in default and 
do not qualify as HQLA , including 
exchange traded equities

- - - - -

24 Other assets: (sum of rows - - - 233 233
25 to
29)

25 Physical traded commodities, 
including gold

- - - - -

26 Assets posted as initial margin for 
derivative contracts and contributions 
to default funds of CCPs

- - 3 3

27 NSFR derivative assets - - - - -
28 NSFR derivative liabilities before 

deduction of variation margin posted
- - - - -

29 All other assets not included in the 
above categories

- - - 230 230

30 Off-balance sheet items
31 Total RSF - - - 233 460
32 Net Stable Funding Ratio (%) 535.07%



UPSC CSE  
mains from  

Sept 15 

Union Public Service Commission (UPSC) will conduct the 
Civil Services Mains Examination 2023 September 15 

onwards. Admit cards for the exam will be issued on the 
commission's website, upsc.gov.in. 

The exam is scheduled for September 15, 16, 17, 18, 23 
and 24, 2023, in two shifts: 9am to noon, and 2pm to 5pm. 

Results of the CSE Prelims exam 2023 were announced on 
June 12 in which a total of 14,624 candidates had 
provisionally qualified for the CSE Mains exam. 

Their candidature were provisional and subject to filling of 
the detailed application form (DAF-1). 

— FPJ Education Desk

MANISH GODHA / Jaipur 
 

Coping with stress, perform-
ing under pressure and with 
too much depression around, 
how do students in Kota over-
come all these, yet go ahead? 
Surely the suicides of  stu-
dents in the coaching hub of  
Kota, Rajasthan would be af-
fecting the psyche of  other 
students, especially those 
who are from other states as 
they don't even have the sup-
port of  their family. 

Ironically, the very pres-
sure some students buckle 
under, combined with the 
tight schedule of  classes, 
helps the other children keep 
their focus and mind away 
from all the negativity 
around them, a talk with stu-
dents in Kota reveals. 

The coaching city has wit-
nessed 21 suicides of  students 
this year with an average of  
three suicides every month 
and this is the highest num-
ber in the last five years. 

While the Kota police is 
still investigating the reasons 
behind the surge in the num-
ber of  cases this year, many 
students unanimously agree 
that the core factor is 
pressure of  performance 
which increases manifold in 
light of  these cases. 

Narendra Jha, a student 
from Bihar, couldn't agree 
more. Narendra, preparing 
here for the medical entrance 
exam NEET, agreed that pres-
sure is immense. Students 
come here burdened already 
with the pressure of  their par-
ents' expectations and the 
money they are spending on 
these studies. (Manish, just 
for our reference, if  you could 
get a ballpark of  the amount 
of  money spent there) They 
have no alternative but to per-
form well and when they 
come across such cases of  sui-
cides, it makes them more de-
pressed for some time. he said. 

 
The family safety ring 
In a way, Abhisar Sharma is 
lucky as his family rallied 
around him for support dur-

ing his testing times. Abhisar 
who hails from Kota itself, re-
cently got admission in a 
B.Tech course. Laying stress 
on the family support, he said 
outstation students, fending 
for themselves, find it 
difficult to cope with the pres-
sure. The mental make-up is 
so fragile that their spirits 
shatter when they fail to 
crack even a test paper. The 
cases of  suicides in between 
only pushes them closer to 
the brink especially with no 
family support system. 

Abhisar says, "Most of  
these suicide cases are of  out-
station students and that em-
phasises the importance of  
family. The pressure of  stud-
ies is the same on all students 
but locals get by with the help 
of  the family." 

Students also discuss this 
among themselves, but do not 
linger over it as the tight 
schedule does not allow them 
the luxury to dwell over such 
disheartening news, said 
Vaibhav Sharma, a Onestion 
medical entrance test NEET 
aspirant. "Yes, it affects the 
mindset of  other students. I 
think in a way it is good for 
them to get busy with classes 
and studies, especially in 
such situations." 

While there are some who 
say that whatever happens 
there does not and should not 
affect other students as it is 
not the end of  life for them, 
rather a fresh beginning. A 
candidate who passed out of  
Kota and is now pursuing an 
engineering course in South 
India, said it has almost be-
come a norm there. His, "We 

would walk down the roads 
there and see someone lying 
in a pool of  blood on the way 
and walk around it," might 
come across as insensitive, 
but he swears that approach 
kept him sane during his stay 
there. 

 
Now among you, now no 
more! 
Horrible scars mar the minds 
of  students living in the hos-
tels where such incidents 
happened, "It is horrible to 
see someone who was one of  
you, hanging from a noose. 
Though it is very disturbing, 
ultimately you have to get 
back to your life and concen-
trate on your goal," a student 
living in a hostel where a sui-
cide occurred a few months 
ago, said on the condition of  
anonimity. 

The administration and 
the police of  Kota are trying 
their best to normalise the 
students. The Additional Su-
perintendent of  Police and in-
charge of  the Students Cell 
Chandrasheel Thakur recent-
ly came up with a video mes-
sage advising the students to 
carry out a Plan B as well. He 
said that sometimes plan B 
works better than plan A and 
students should not let their 
hobbies die. He also suggested 
that students need not study 
the whole day for their suc-
cess. 

Trying to help in their own 
way, the student cell is also 
reaching out to students to 
talk to them and is carrying 
out a study to understand the 
reasons behind the surge of  
suicides in Kota.

THE INEXORABLE TICKING...

MEGHA CHOWDHURY / Mumbai 
 

EducationUSA at the United 
States-India Educational 
Foundation (USIEF), 
Mumbai hosted a university 
fair here on Sunday. Over 615 
students interested in study-
ing in the United States regis-
tered for the event, which fea-
tured in-person discussions 
with US universities repre-
sentatives, EducationUSA ad-
visers, and US Consulate visa 
officials. 

Representatives from 40 ac-
credited universities and col-
leges in the US took part in 
the event, offering a range of  
academic programmes at the 
undergraduate, graduate, and 
doctoral level. 

 
In-person interactions 
Rob Anderson, the Public En-
gagement Unit Chief  at the 
US Consulate General, Mum-
bai, opined that this is the sea-
son where we find a lot of  in-
terest and see real hunger 
among students for in person 
engagement which is why we 
have planned this massive 
eight-city tour of  India.” 

“We are now targeting ap-
proximately 500000 Indian 
students over the next three 
years, but the goal is really 
about helping students find 

the next best fit. In the year 
2022, the US Department of  
State issued about 125,000 stu-
dent visas to Indian 
students,” Anderson told The 
Free Press Journal. 

Universities that took part 
included University of  Hous-
ton, University of  Utah, Uni-
versity of  Arizona, Columbia 
University and Berkeley Col-
lege. Attendees were given 
scope to interact with advis-
ers from EducationUSA and 
US Consulate representatives 
to enquire about 
scholarships, English lan-
guage requirements, visa ap-
plications and funding. 

In terms of  the state from 
where the majority of  Indian 
students move to the US, An-
derson says, "I know a lot 
come from Maharashtra and 
Gujarat. The number is large 
since most Gujarati students 
tend to have relatives in the 
United States. We also get a 
large number of  students 
from Karnataka." 

While not mentioning the 
reasons for the recent depor-
tation of  21 Indian students 
from the US port of  entry due 
to visa-related concerns, An-
derson clarified it was not a 
biased decision. "It wasn't 
aimed at Indian students, but 
rather at how our system 

works. A student visa gets 
you from here to the port of  
entry in the US, so the depart-
ments of  homeland security 
and customs protection all as-
sess entrance to the US with 
their own procedures. In most 
cases, it works out, but at 
times for whatever reason, 
they identify a problem that 
we did not see here.” 

Anderson said that offline 
events such as this fair were 
important to help students 
and parents make informed 
choices. 

 
Demand for STEM courses 
As more students along with 
their parents walked in, the 
aspirants asked about Sci-
ence, Engineering, Visual 
Arts and Humanities among 
other subjects. 

Bishal Roy, a Class IX stu-

dent of  BD Memorial Inter-
national School, was there 
with his father. “I visited the 
School of  Visual Arts, New 
York City and the University 
of  Arizona. I really liked the 
School of  Visual Arts. I spoke 
with the alumni too and got to 
know the procedures that I 
have to go through. I want to 
study physics, visual arts or 
data science in future.’’ 

The attendees included not 
only school and college stu-
dents but also working profes-
sionals who came to enquire 
about PhD courses.  

Salim Awalkar, a working 
professional, came to the 
event with a similar purpose. 
“I am planning to get a PhD in 
Water Resources. I have a spe-
cialisation in Water Re-
sources with a major in Geog-
raphy. I’m planning for the 

January intake,” he said. 
 

Parents equally enthusiastic 
Parents who accompanied 
their children took part in the 
discussions with equal zeal. 
Minti Shah, parent of  a grad-
uate student from Mumbai, 
appreciated the importance 
of  such events in helping stu-
dents choose the right career 
path. “This is a very good op-
portunity for those wanting 
to pursue higher studies 
abroad. My daughter wants to 
study computer science. The 
US is a far better option than 
Canada and Germany in 
terms of  job prospects and 
good quality courses.” 

The universities that ap-
pealed the most to the stu-
dents are those with a flexible 
curriculum that allows them 
to pursue academics and si-
multaneously develop voca-
tional skills.  

Frederick Sloane, an alum-
nus of  Cornell University, 
said, “I think that people 
should focus on developing 
the skills that they need. I 
completed my Bachelor's de-
gree in Sociology and Eco-
nomics in 2011. I really en-
joyed the fact that I could 
combine different fields and 
have an interdisciplinary ap-
proach to my studies.’’
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EducationUSA helps Mumbai  
students with global dreams

The pressure bomb of Kota, which drives stressed aspirants  
to take the extreme step, could well be dismantled with  

family support, students feel

Prefab classrooms, guest teachers for Bihar schools 
PTI / Patna 

 
The Bihar Education Department 
has ordered government schools fac-
ing shortage of  classrooms to con-
struct prefabricated classrooms to 
accommodate students, an official 
said. 

The Education Department has 
also directed schools facing shortage 
of  teachers to hire 'guest teachers'. 

Many government schools in Bi-
har are facing shortage of  class-
rooms and teachers as per inspection 
reports of  District Magistrates, the 
official said. 

"Classes are being taken in veran-
dah/open space because of  the lack 
of  space in the existing classrooms. 
Keeping the current situation in 
mind, officials concerned have been 
directed to get 'prefabricated class-
rooms' built on a war footing. The 
prefabricated classrooms should be 
built on a requirement basis", said K 
K Pathak, Additional Chief  Secre-
tary (ACS), Education Department, 
in his letter (dated August 26, 2023) to 
DMs across the state 

'Guest teachers' will also be ap-
pointed immediately to overcome the 
shortage, said the official. 

The chronic deficiencies in school 
infrastructure, especially the short-
age of  classrooms and teachers were 
noticed during regular inspections, 
started from July 1, 2023, of  schools 
by the DMs in their respective dis-
tricts. 

The ACS has asked DMs to person-
ally monitor the progress of  the 
work. The prefabricated classrooms 
can be built swiftly and cost-effective-
ly. 

The ACS in his letter further said, 
"Increase in the attendance of  pupils 
and teachers, has also revealed the 
shortage of  teachers in schools. Al-

though the Bihar Public Service 
Commission has started the recruit-
ment process of  teachers, 
completion of  the process will take at 
least four to six months. Therefore, 
the department has directed officials 
concerned to appoint 'guest teachers' 
on priority to meet the demand. It 
must be done according to the set 
guidelines". 

Earlier, the regular inspection had 
revealed that a majority of  primary 
and middle schools in the state have 
discoloured chalkboards, lack of  
proper boundary walls and shortage 
of  functional toilets.
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